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Everyday visionaries

Provide our customers with the next generation of
productivity gains and customer experience innovation
through our deep knowledge of the changing global
consumer and technology.
In everyday language …
It means everyone who works here is working at the
cutting edge of their profession. It guarantees that we provide
development that helps our people to stay at the forefront
of every market we operate in. Most of all,
it makes this an exciting, forward-thinking place to work,
every single day.

NCR SHARED VALUES
NCR Shared Values form the foundation of our business relationships
with each other, our customers, strategic partners and suppliers. They
define a global, consistent framework for conducting business. We use
NCR Shared Values to direct our behavior and guide our decisions as we
drive to achieve our business objectives.
INTEGRITY: Highest Standards of Integrity
We must act legally, ethically and with courage, fairness and honesty in all
our business dealings. We must keep our commitments, admit our
mistakes and learn from our experiences. We are accountable for what
we achieve and how we achieve it. We know our reputation is directly
affected by the conduct of each and every employee and we strive to
ensure the NCR name remains worthy of trust.
PERFORMANCE: Commitment to Performance Excellence
We commit to high performance in all functions. We must take personal
ownership for the success of our company and work together to
continuously improve and achieve best-in-class performance. We must
deliver the highest quality products and services to our internal and
external customers. And we realize that profitable growth is the means
to develop new business solutions for our customers and create
opportunities for employees, as well as reward the trust of our
shareowners and the performance of employees.
CUSTOMER DEDICATION: Passion for Our Customers and
Their Success
We genuinely care about our customers and are dedicated to serving
them well. We learn their markets, understand their specific goals and

objectives, and develop solutions that deliver business value. We must
build teams with each other and with our customers to maximize our
ability to deliver the highest possible value. We must always respond
with a sense of urgency. And we must strive to develop long-term
customer relationships by consistently delivering quality, innovation,
and business value that meet or exceed our customers' expectations –
with no surprises.
INNOVATION: Pursuit of Innovation
We must be in constant pursuit of innovation – both process and
technology innovation. Throughout our history, NCR's ability to
harness the power of new ideas and put them to work for our
customers in the real world has defined our company and fueled our
leadership. From the way we search for new and more effective ways
to run our business to the dynamic new technologies we deliver to our
customers, innovation powers the engine that drives our success now
and in the future.
RESPECT & TEAMWORK: Respect for Each Other, Work as a
Team
We base our working relationships upon trust and respect and
recognize the contributions of every member of the NCR team. We
value the unique qualities, abilities and perspectives each person
brings to a challenge or opportunity, and we also know that as a team
we can achieve together what would remain out of reach for us
individually. And we communicate openly and candidly with each
other and extend our respect and team spirit to customers, partners,
suppliers and the communities in which we live and work.
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Result at a Glance

Revenue

2014
N'000

2013
N'000

% Growth

6,642,862

6,107,931

9

Operating Profit/(loss)

182,782

(102,333)

(279)

Profit/(loss) before taxation

215,027

(66,785)

(422)

Income tax (expense)/credit

(57,639)

18,088

(419)

Profit/(loss) after taxation

157,388

(48,697)

(423)

54,000

54,000

1,192,963

808,404

Share capital
Cash and cash equivalents

48

Basic earnings/(loss) per share (Naira)

1.46

(-0.45)

(424)

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (Naira)

1.46

(-0.45)

(424)
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Directors, Officers and Professional Advisers

Directors
Otunba Adekunle Ojora
Ambassador Hamzat Ahmadu
Mr. Stelios Fragkos (Greek)
Mr. George Flouros (Cypriot)
Mr. Stelios Atalianis (Cypriot)
Mr. Ahmed Abdel Aziz Hamada (Egyptian)
Mr. Michael Vallier (American)

Registered Office:

-

Chairman
Director
Director (Resigned 19 December 2014)
Director
Director (Resigned 25 March 2014)
Country Manager (Appointed 17 April 2014)
Director (Appointed 17 April 2014)

NCR (Nigeria)Plc
NCR House
6,Broad Street
P. O. Box 509
Lagos
Nigeria.

Registered Number: RC 751

Company Secretary: Mrs. Olufunke Hussain

Registrar:

Apel Capital & Trust (Registrars) Limited
18b, Nnobi Street, Masha,
Surulere, Lagos
Nigeria.
Tel: 0703 418 0712, 0812 822 5828, 0704 612 6698
Email: www.apel.com.ng

Auditors:

Ernst & Young
(Chartered Accountants)
10th & 13th Floors
UBA House
57 Marina, Lagos.

Solicitor:

Abdullahi Ibrahim & Co
2,Towry Street
Lagos Island
Lagos.
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Corporate Profile

NCR Nigeria PLC is incorporated in Nigeria under the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 Laws of the
Federation of Nigeria, 2004 as a Public Limited Liability Company, and is domiciled in Nigeria. The Company
commenced operations in Nigeria on 9th December, 1949 under the name of National Cash Register Company
(West Africa) Limited. The company was granted a listing on the Nigerian Stock Exchange on 30th May 1979.
The company adopted its present name of NCR (Nigeria) Plc in 1996.
NCR Nigeria PLC is the first Multinational ICT Company quoted on the Nigerian Stock Exchange. The company
has positively been involved in many facets of Nigerian society. These include helping Nigeria convert to the
decimal system being the dominant supplier of cash registers then, which were the precursors of the calculators
and computers, and also pioneering the ATM revolution in Nigeria. NCR introduced the first ATM in Nigeria in
1989. With dominance in the Nigerian financial solutions sector and Nigeria's top banks as customers both in Self
Service and Payments Solutions, NCR has been delivering cutting edge customer support services, ICT
solutions and consulting services to many sectors in the Nigerian economy for over 63 years.
NCR provides innovative products and services that enable businesses to connect, interact and transact with
their customers and enhance their customer relationships by addressing consumer demand for convenience,
value and individual service. NCR's portfolio of self-service and assisted-service solutions serve customers in the
financial services, retail and hospitality, healthcare, travel and gaming and entertainment industries and include
Automated Teller Machines (ATMs), Self Service kiosks and point-of-sale terminals with peripherals as well as
software application that can be used by consumers to enable them to interact with businesses from their
computer or mobile device. NCR complements these product solutions by offering a complete portfolio of
services to help customers design, deploy and support its technology tools, as well as offering services for thirdparty products.
NCR provides specific solutions for customers in a range of industries such as financial services, retail and
hospitality, travel and gaming, healthcare, and entertainment. NCR's solutions are built on a foundation of long
established industry knowledge and consulting expertise, value-added software and hardware technology,
global customer support services, and a complete line of business consumables and specialty media products.
Products and Services
Our product and service offerings fall into the following categories:
ATMs and Other Financial Products
We provide financial institutions, retailers and independent deployers with financial-oriented self-service
technologies, such as ATMs (with forex, cheque accepting, cash dispensing and accepting capabilities), kiosks
(financial and retail), mobile branches, video teller machines and recyclers.
These solutions create pleasant and convenient experiences for consumers, generate new revenue streams and
enable our customers to reduce costs while enhancing customer loyalty.
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Corporate Profile Cont’d

Financial and Retail Solutions:
Our financial and retail solutions are designed to quickly and reliably process consumer transactions and
incorporate advanced features.
We boost a very rich suite of software that is second to none in the industry. These includes: ATM application,
security solutions, fraud management, transaction switching, predictive platform, cash management, mobile
banking, online banking, ATM network monitoring, transaction monitoring, reconciliation, image and electronic
journal management, enterprise data warehousing and a host of others.
This remains one of our richest value added to our customers with the attending result of improving operational
efficiency, enhancing consumer experience and ensuring significant cost savings.
Cheque and Document Imaging:
Our cheque and Document Imaging offerings provide end-to-end solutions for both traditional paper-based and
image-based cheque and item processing. These solutions utilize advanced image recognition and workflow
technologies to automate item processing, helping financial institutions increase efficiency and reduce operating
costs. Consisting of hardware, software, consulting and support services, our comprehensive Cheque and
Document Imaging solutions enable cheque and item-based transactions to be digitally captured, processed and
retained within a flexible, scalable environment. NCR was also involved in the introduction of the MICR cheque
standards in Nigeria and, for many years, was a member of the CBN-MICR implementation sub-committee.
The process of cheque clearing in Nigeria changed when NCR partnered with Nigerian InterBank Settlement
Scheme (NIBSS) to develop a solution for Nigeria Automated Clearing System (NACS). NCR deployed NCR's
Electronic Cheque Processing & Image Capture solution and this project was rated very successful by NIBSS as
well as the participating banks. NCR's image capture system takes care of over 70% of the total items processed
in the clearing house.
NCR Teradata Enterprise Data Warehouse, BI and Marketing Automation System:
NCR Corporation was until 2007, the parent company of Teradata Corporation, the leading provider of
powerful, enterprise analytic technologies and services that include Enterprise Data warehouse, Business
Intelligence and Customer Relationship Management, CRM. The company (Teradata) was however spun-off as
a stand-a-lone organization in 2007, as a separate entity from NCR Corporation. NCR Nigeria is however, the
regional representative of Teradata Corporation for the entire Africa region, excluding Egypt and Pakistan. In
this capacity, NCR Nigeria offers Teradata Enterprise Data Warehouse and Business Intelligence solutions to the
banking industry in Nigeria. Teradata is the global leader in analytic data platforms, business applications and
consulting services that help organizations become more competitive by increasing the value of their data and
customer relationships. With over 2,700 customers in 77 countries, NCR Teradata Enterprise Data Warehouse
and BI solution is the leader in Data Analytics, Multi-Channel Campaign Management, Marketing Resource
Management and Integrated Marketing Management suite of solutions.
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Corporate Profile Cont’d

Services
One of the company's major strength is the team of seasoned customer services department comprising
Customer & Project Engineers, Customer Care Representatives, Service Management Officers, Operation
Analyst, Account Service Managers, Logistics Interface for part distribution and Finance Administrator.
NCR services today pride itself in widespread coverage & footprint in the Nigerian services industry with
customer engineers in 6 geopolitical zones of the country and presence in every local govt. area, hence the best
response and resolution time in the industry.
NCR has the largest services network with 3 central warehouses (Lagos, Abuja and Port Harcourt) and 9
regional stocking locations (Ibadan, Benin, Kano, Calabar, Akure, Enugu, Jos, Owerri and Kaduna)
The company has continued to deliver the best ATM uptime availability to our highly delighted customers.
NCR provides maintenance and support services (hardware/software) for our product offerings and also other
services including site assessment and preparation, staging, installation and implementation, systems
management and managed services of third party products.
Our strategy is to focus primarily on maintenance and support of NCR-branded products in order to capture
higher margin services and significantly reduce redundant costs associated with supporting/servicing multiple
third-party products.
We have robust and experienced Professional Services Consultants with specialized expertise on software
products.
Consumables
These products include two-sided thermal paper, paper rolls for receipts in ATMs and POS solutions, inkjet and
laser printer supplies, thermal transfer and ink ribbons, labels, laser documents, business forms, and specialty
media items such as photo and presentation papers.

Registered Office
NCR (Nigeria) Plc
NCR House
6, Broad Street
P.O.Box 509, Lagos
Nigeria
Tel: 01- 2793970
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 63rd Annual General Meeting of NCR (Nigeria) PLC will be held at the
Agip Recital Hall, Muson Centre, 8/9 Marina, Onikan, Lagos, on Wednesday the 2nd day of December, 2015 at
11 a.m. to transact the following business:
ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st December, 2014 together with the
Reports of the Directors, Audit Committee and Auditors thereon.

2.

To re-elect Directors retiring by rotation.

3.

To authorize the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors.

4.

To elect members of the Audit Committee.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
5.
To fix the remuneration of the Directors

1.

NOTES
Proxy
A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. The
proxy form is contained in the Annual Reports and Financial Statements. If it is to be valid for the purpose
of the Meeting, it must be completed, detached and deposited at the office of the Registrars, Apel
Capital & Trust (Registrars) Limited whose office is at 18b Nnobi Street, Masha, Surulere, Lagos not later
than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting.

2.

Closure of Register of Members and Transfer Books
The Register of Members and Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Monday 16th
November, 2015 to Friday 20th November, 2015 (both dates inclusive) for the purpose of preparing an
up-to-date Register of Members.

3.

Nominations for the Audit Committee
Any member may nominate a shareholder as a member of the Audit Committee of the Company, by
giving notice in writing of such nomination to the Company Secretary at least 21 days before the date of
the Annual General Meeting.

4.

Unclaimed Dividend Warrants
Some dividend warrants sent to shareholders' registered addresses are yet to be presented for payment
or returned to the Registrar's Office for revalidation. Any member affected by this notice should write
to the Company Secretary /Registrars or call at the Company's registered office during normal working
hours. Shareholders are encouraged to update their mailing addresses by forwarding the latest
information to the Company or its Registrars, Apel Capital & Trust (Registrars) Limited.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting Cont’d

5.

E-Dividend
Notice is hereby given to all shareholders to open bank accounts, stockbroking accounts and CSCS
accounts for the purpose of dividend. Detachable application forms for e-dividend is attached to the
Annual Report to enable all shareholders furnish particulars of their accounts to the Registrars as soon as
possible.

Dated this 10th day of November, 2015
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Olufunke Hussain (Mrs.)
Company Secretary
FRC/2013/NBA/00000002577
NCR (Nigeria) Plc
6, Broad Street
P.O. Box 509, Lagos
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Chairman’s Statement

“...Our company has been
recognized as the choice
ATM service provider
in the financial sector,
with the infrastructure and
technical competence to
manage large ATM estates.”

The Otunba
Adekunle Ojora
OFR, CON, FNIM, JP
Chairman

Distinguished Shareholders,
I am pleased to welcome you to the 63rd
Annual General Meeting of our Company,
NCR (Nigeria) Plc and to present to you the
Annual Report and Financial Statements for
the year ended 31 December, 2014 together
with a review of the performance of our
Company in the course of the financial year.
To review our financial and operating
performance, it is pertinent to refer to the
business environment that contributed in

shaping our performance during the year
under review.
The Nigerian business environment remained
challenging during the 2014 financial year. The
year was characterized by a drop in oil revenue
and the devaluation of the Naira due to the fall
in global oil prices which had a significant
impact on the economy leading to additional
pressures in operating costs across all sectors.
The security challenges in the northern part of
the country also significantly impacted
economic growth in 2014.
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Chairman Statement Cont’d

In view of very stiff competition, the Company
has continued to pursue the market
penetration strategy through the creation of
differentiated products and solutions aimed at
consolidating and growing our leadership
position.

Corporation and consequently from the
Board with effect from 19th December,
2014. We sincerely want to thank Mr. Stelios
Fragkos for his contributions to the growth of
our Company. We wish him success in his
future endeavours.

It is imperative that we display cautious
prudence at this point in time and as a result,
the Board of Directors will not be
recommending the payment of dividends for
the year ended 31st December, 2014.
Nevertheless, please be assured that the
Company's commitment to maximizing
returns on your investment remains unshaken.

It will be appropriate to mention at this point
that the Company has appointed Messrs.
Ernst & Young as statutory auditors to the
Company. Apel Capital & Trust (Registrars)
Limited have also been appointed Registrars
to the Company. We welcome both
companies on Board and wish them a
successful tenure.

During the year under review, the Company
continued to dominate the ATM industry in
Nigeria with a market share of over 51%. We
have also made considerable progress in the
Payment sector as well.

I would like to conclude by expressing my
sincere gratitude to you distinguished
shareholders for your continued cooperation
and support. I am pleased to acknowledge
and appreciate the support of my colleagues
on the Board and would also like to use this
opportunity to thank management and staff
for their commitment and hard work.

I am happy to inform you that our Company has
been recognized as the choice ATM service
provider in the financial sector, with the
infrastructure and technical competence to
manage large ATM estates and today our share
of the market has increased significantly.
Since the last Annual General Meeting, there
have been some changes in the composition of
the Board.
Mr. Stelios Fragkos exited from NCR

Thank you most sincerely for your presence
and attention.

THE OTUNBA ADEKUNLE OJORA
OFR, CON, FNIM, JP
Chairman

NCR (NIGERIA) PLC, ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Board of Directors

The Otunba Adekunle Ojora
OFR, CON, FNIM, JP - Chairman

Ambassador Hamzat Ahmadu

Mr. Stelios Atalianis (Cypriot)

Mr. George Flouros - (Cypriot)

CON, (Wali of Sokoto) - Director

Director - Resigned 25 March, 2014

Director

Mr. Stelios Fragkos - (Greek)

Mr. Michael J. Vallier CPA CIA

Mr. Ahmed Abdel Aziz Hamada

Director - Resigned 19 December, 2014

MEA Regional Controller

Country General Manager
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Board of Directors Cont’d

The Otunba Adekunle Ojora OFR, CON,
FNIM, JP - Chairman
Born into the Royal family of Lagos, The Otunba
Adekunle Ojora OFR, CON, FNIM, JP is a graduate of
Journalism from the London Polytechnic now the
University of Westminster. He also attended
management courses at Harvard University School of
Business and at Christ College Cambridge University,
England. He worked as an assistant Editor at BBC London
and came back to serve at the Nigeria Broadcasting
Service. He moved on to the United Africa Company of
Nigeria (UAC) Limited where he served as Public
Relations Manager and rose to the position of a Director,
the second Nigerian to hold that position in 1962.
A board room giant, The Otunba Ojora OFR, CON,
FNIM, JP, was the first Nigerian to be appointed Chairman
of a multi-national oil company, AGIP Nigeria Limited
where he served for 28 years. He has served as Chairman
in many companies cutting across oil & gas, insurance,
office equipment, pharmaceutical, real estate, and
financial sectors of the Nigerian economy. The Otunba
Ojora OFR, CON, FNIM, JP also holds numerous
positions in local, bilateral and national business
associations.
He has received various national and international awards
for his prowess in business and was honoured with the
National Award of the Order of the Federal Republic of
Nigeria in 1982. He was also awarded the Nigerian
National honour of Commander of the Order of the
Niger. He was awarded an honorary doctorate degree of
law by the Central State University of Ohio, Wilberforce,
USA and holds foreign honours of Freeman of the City of
London, Grand Officer of the Republic of Italy, Grand
Commander of the Republic of Italy and Grand
Commander of Austria.
He is a honorary Law graduate of Ado Bayero University
Kano, Nigeria and a honorary awardee of the
Department of Computer Science, University of Ibadan,
Fellow of the Institute of Management of Great Britain in
1972, Fellow of the Royal Society of Arts of the United
Kingdom and Honorary Fellow of the Yaba College of
Technology.

The Otunba Ojora OFR, CON, FNIM, JP, a Justice of
Peace, is a member of the Nigerian Stock Exchange,
Honorary Vice President of Lagos and Nigerian
Chamber of Commerce and Industry and Vice President
of the Manufacturers Association of Nigeria.

Ambassador Hamzat Ahmadu CON
(Wali of Sokoto) JP, D.Litt (NAU) LL.D, D.SC.Admin (CU),
DPA, FCIS, FNIM - Director
Ambassador Hamzat Ahmadu CON, was one of
Nigeria's most Senior Foreign Service Officers and has
had a most distinguished Diplomatic Career. He
previously served as Ambassador to the then USSR
(Soviet Union) and concurrently accredited German
Democratic Republic, Ambassador to the Kingdom of
the Netherlands, Ambassador to the Republic of the
Cameroun and High Commissioner to the
Commonwealth of the Bahamas. He also had Diplomatic
postings to London and Bonn.
In addition to his Diplomatic postings, Ambassador
Ahmadu CON has had the distinction of serving as
Principal Secretary to three Nigerian Heads of State.
Ambassador Ahmadu CON played a major role in
formulating, managing and implementing Nigeria's
foreign policy. He served as Permanent Secretary and
Head of the Diplomatic Service, Director-General of
African Affairs, Director-General of Protocol, Director,
Asia Division and Director of Africa Consular and
Treaties Division.
After his retirement, Ambassador Ahmadu CON was
appointed first Chancellor of Nnamdi Azikiwe
University, Akwa, Anambra State; Chairman, A.G.
Leventis (Nigeria) Plc, Chairman, Board of Governors
Shehu Shagari College of Education Sokoto, Sokoto
State, Nigeria, a Member of the Advisory Committee on
National Honours and Award and a member of the
Presidential Advisory Council, International Relations
(PAC),
He is currently the Vice Patron of the Nigeria-Britain
Association; Council Member, Nigeria Conservation
Foundation (NCF); Chairman, Nigeria Conservation
Foundation (NCF); Chairman Board of Directors MTN
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Nigeria Foundation GTE; Vice Patron Legacy (The
Historical and Environment Interest Group of Nigeria)
and Trustee Legacy (The Historical and Environmental
Interest Group of Nigeria).

Mr. Stelios Atalianis - Director
(Resigned with effect from March 25, 2014)
Mr. Stelios Atalianis is a graduate of the Middlesex
Polytechnic (London) with a B.SC Degree in Accounting.
He started his career as an Auditor in Gregoriou & CIA
Accounting from 1982 -1983. He joined NCR
Corporation on May 1st 1983 as an Accountant and held
various positions within NCR Middle East and Africa
including MEA FSSC/Finance Director, MEA FSSC Acting
Leader (on a temporary basis), Facility Manager for MEA
and Portfolio Manager for MEA, Iberia and Italy, Project
Manager for the installation of the Oracle financial
systems, Program Manager for Reporting, Revenue Asset
Management and Associate Services, Financial Controller
for Middle East and Africa area, Financial Controller for
the PC Business Assets & Administration Manager,
Accounting and Reporting Manager for Middle East and
Africa and Accounting Manager for Middle East and
Africa.
He rose to the position of Finance/FSSC/Human
Resources & Operations Director of NCR Middle East
and Africa (MEA) at the MEA area office in Nicosia,
Cyprus. He exited from NCR Corporation and
consequently from the Board on March 25, 2015.

Mr. George Flouros - Director
Mr. George Flouros is Region Vice President for NCR East
Mediterranean, Middle East and Africa for Financial
Solutions.
He is a graduate of the City University in London with
B.Sc Degree in Engineering and an MBA Degree in
Marketing from Cass Business School in London.
Mr. Flouros started his career in NCR Cyprus in 1988 and
upon completion of the NCR Eagles' Sales Training
program in Dayton, Ohio, he was appointed sales
representative. Between 1992 and 1994, he was given

the opportunity to relocate to Dayton, Ohio and
worked as a Product Manager for Midrange Systems
covering Latin America, Middle East and Africa. In 1994
he returned to Cyprus as a Sales Manager. During that
period, NCR Cyprus experienced substantial growth
and maintained a leading position in the market across all
industries.
In 1998, Mr. Flouros became the Middle East/Africa Area
Director for Retail Solutions Division (RSD) and soon
after, in 2002, he also assumed responsibility for RSD in
Central Eastern Europe (CEE) and Russia. Under his
leadership, RSD business experienced substantial
growth which led the Indirect Channel business in the
region to great levels of success
In 2004, Mr. Flouros was appointed as Managing
Director for East Mediterranean and Near East.
Between 2004 and 2010, Mr. Flouros served as
Managing Director and gained valuable experience
across Middle East and Africa in both Direct and Indirect
Channels. He successfully led sales initiatives for all NCR
advocated solutions across his territory including
extensive business development activities.
In January 2011, he was appointed as Region Vice
President for East Mediterranean, Middle East and
Africa area.

Mr. Stelios Fragkos – Director
(Resigned with effect from December 19, 2014)
Mr. Stelios Fragkos who was the Global Sales Vice
President, Financial Sales, of NCR Corporation,
previously served as the Regional Vice President,
Emerging Markets Group, Asia, Middle East & Africa.
He is a graduate of Rutgers College of Engineering in
New Jersey, and holds a B.Sc (Honours) in Chemical
Engineering and a Masters of Science in the field of
Computer & Information Science from the New Jersey
Institute of Technology.
He joined NCR in 1999 as Managing Director NCR
Hellas to manage NCR Corporation's operations in
Greece.
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Mr. Fragkos became Vice President Middle East/Africa in
September 2003 with responsibility for managing the
Middle East operations and sales initiatives for all NCR
advocated solutions across all Middle East/Africa
countries, including Greece, Malta and Cyprus from the
European Union.
With the evolution of NCR's strategy being growth
driven, responding faster to the needs of companies and
consumers in some of the world's fastest growing
economies, a dedicated emerging market sales group was
established, and Stelios Fragkos was promoted to
Regional Vice President, Emerging Markets AMEA
(Asia/MEA) responsible for expanding NCR's customer
base, revenue and profitability in these markets. He
resigned from NCR Corporation in December 2014.

Michael J. Vallier CPA CIA - MEA Regional
Controller NCR Corporation
Michael J. Vallier is the MEA Regional Controller of NCR
Corporation, a leading global technology Company. The
Company's headquarters is based in Duluth, Georgia USA
and NCR employs approximately 26,000 people
worldwide.
Michael started his career in 1983 as a Claim Adjuster
with Indiana Insurance Company, South Band Indiana,
where he worked for two years. He became the
Controller at SBN Corporation in 1985 in South Bend,
Indiana and worked for three years before he joined CTS
Corporation as Internal Audit Manager from 1988-1991
in Elkhart, Indiana. He then moved on to work as the
Corporate Controller of International Hotel
management Company (South Bend, Indiana from 19911992.
Michael was the president and owner of CPA Firm in
South Bend, Indiana from 1992 - 1998. He is a BSc.
Graduate of Ball State University.
From 1998-2001, He worked as the Country Director
and Senior Audit Manager for Deloitte & Touche Vilnius,
Lithuania and Riyadh, Saudi Arabia respectively.

In the Bahamas, Michael was the Senior Audit Manager
from 2001- 2003 with Ernst & Young Company, He has
also served as the consultant and Project Manager for
Control Solution International, Inc. at Sarasota, Florida
from 2003-2004.
In 2004, he Joined NCR Corporation Dayton, Ohio as
the Director Audit and Advisory Services. He moved in
2009 to NCR Japan and worked as the Chief Financial
Officer (Tokyo, Japan).

Ahmed Abdel Aziz Ahmed Hamada
Country General Manager – NCR (Nigeria) Plc
Prior to his assignment, Ahmed has served as the Vice
President-Global Sales in Cequens from 2012-2013,
and Marketing Director from Dec 2011-Dec 2012.
He also worked with Vodafone Egypt and his previous
assignments are: Head of Leads Management (July 2010Oct 2011); Head of Business Products and Solutions
(April 2008 - June2010); Enterprise Solution Sales Senior
Manager (July 2007- March 2008) and General Manager
for the Corporate Business Unit (March 2005 - June
2007).
Between July 2004 – February 2005, Ahmed has worked
with Oracle Egypt as a Sector Manager. He also worked
with NCR Egypt from April 1997 – June 2004 in various
Sales management and project management roles.
Ahmed was a System Engineer with IBM Egypt from
January 1994 - February 1996.
He taught mathematics and computer languages as a
Lecturer in the Faculty of Engineering in Cairo
University from October 1991 - December 1993.
Ahmed is a B.Sc. graduate from the University of Cairo in
Egypt. He has an MBA in Marketing and International
Business at American University in Cairo.
Ahmed was born on 1st of January, 1969 in Giza, Egypt.
He is married with children and he speaks Arabic,
English and a little bit of German.
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting to the members of NCR (Nigeria) Plc (“the Company”) their report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.
1.

Legal Form
NCR (Nigeria) Plc was incorporated in Nigeria under the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20
Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004 as a Public Liability Company, and is domiciled in Nigeria. The
Company commenced operations on 9 December 1949 under the name National Cash Register
Company (West Africa) Limited, and changed its name to NCR (Nigeria) Limited in 1974. The company
was granted a listing on the Nigerian Stock Exchange on 30 May 1979. In 1990 the name of the Company
was changed to NCR (Nigeria) Public Limited Company in compliance with the Companies and Allied
Matters Act. The name of the Company was changed to AT&T Global Information Solutions (Nigeria) Plc
in 1994 and on 16 July 1996 the Company adopted its present name of NCR (Nigeria) Plc.
NCR (Nigeria) Plc is a subsidiary of NCR Corporation (NYSE: NCR) a global leader in consumer
transaction technologies, turning everyday interactions with business into exceptional experiences. With
its software, hardware and portfolio of services, NCR enables more than 450 million transactions daily
across the retail, financial, travel, hospitality, telecommunications and technology industries. NCR
solutions run the everyday transactions that make your life easier.
NCR is headquartered in Duluth, Georgia, with more than 26,000 employees and does business in 180
countries. NCR is a trademark of NCR Corporation in the United States and other countries.
61.76% of the share capital of the Company is held by NCR Corporation, United States of America while
the balance of 38.24% is held by Nigerians.

2.

Principal Activities
The company’s principal activity includes provision of technology and services that help businesses
connect, interact and transact with their customers. The Company is a technology Company that
provides innovative products which include:
l

ATM (Automated Teller Machines)

l

Retail Point of Sales terminals (Point of Sale)

l

Self Service Kiosks

l

Self-check-in/out systems

l

Sale of computer consumables

3.

Change in the Reporting Framework
There have been no changes to the accounting policies adopted by the Company.

4.

State of Affairs
In the opinion of the Directors, the state of the Company’s affairs is satisfactory and no events have
occurred since the reporting date, which would affect the financial statements as presented.
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5.

Results for the Year
The following is a summary of the Company’s operating results:
2014

2013
Restated

N’000

N’000

6,642,862

6,107,931

Profit/ (loss) before taxation

215,027

(66,785)

Income tax (expense)/ credit

(57,639)

18,088

Profit/ (loss) after taxation

157,388

(48,697)

Revenue

6

Dividend
No dividend has been recommended for the financial year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil). The
Directors are confident that we will sustain satisfactory performance henceforth. It is however
imperative that we display cautious prudence at this point in time but please be assured that the
Company's commitment to maximizing returns on your investment remains unshaken.

7.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Information relating to changes in property, plant and equipment (PPE) is shown in Note 13 to the
financial statements. In the opinion of the Directors, the market value of the Company's PPE is not less
than the carrying value shown in the financial statements.

8.

Acquisition of own Shares
The company has not purchased any of its own shares during the year under review (2013: Nil).

9.

Directors
The names of the Directors at the date of this report and of those who held office during the financial year
are as follows:
Otunba Adekunle Ojora

- Chairman

Ambassador Hamzat Ahmadu

- Director

Mr. Stelios Fragkos (Greek)

- Director - Resigned 19 December, 2014

Mr. George Flouros (Cypriot)

- Director

Mr. Stelios Atalianis (Cypriot)

- Director - Resigned 25 March, 2014

Mr. Ahmed Abdel Aziz Hamada (Egyptian) - Country Manager - Appointed 17, April 2014
Mr. Michael Vallier (American)

- Director - Appointed 17 April, 2014
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In accordance with Section 256 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, Laws of the
Federation of Nigeria 2004 and in line with Article 88 - 91 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr.
George Flouros will be retiring by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible,
offer himself for re-election.
10.

Directors’ Interest in Shares
The interest of Directors in the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the Register of
Directors’ Shareholdings and/or as notified by the Directors for the purpose of Sections 275 and 276 of
the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2014 and the Listing
requirements of the Nigerian Stock Exchange are as follows:
Number of Shares
31 December 2014

Number of Shares
31 December 2013

992,562
53,022
-

1,009,562
53,022
-

Otunba Adekunle Ojora
Ambassador Hamzat Ahmadu
Mr. Stelios Fragkos
Mr. George Flouros
Mr. Stelios Atalianis
Mr. Ahmed Abdel Aziz Hamada
Mr. Michael Vallier
11.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts
None of the Directors has notified the Company for the purpose of Section 277 of the Companies and
Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004 of any direct or indirect interest in
contracts or proposed contracts in which the Company was involved during the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013: Nil).

12.

Substantial Interest in Shares
According to the register of members no one person or organization other than NCR Corporation, USA
held more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2014.

NCR Incorporation
13.

2014
Number of Shares

%

66,705,456

61.76

2013
Number of Shares %
66,705,456

61.76

Analysis of Shareholding
The issued and fully paid-up share capital of the Company is N54,000,000 divided into 108,000,000
ordinary shares of 50k each, of this 66,705,456 shares, equivalent to 61.76 percent are held by NCR
Corporation, USA, while 41,294,544 shares equivalent to 38.24 percent are held by Nigerian
shareholders as at 31 December 2014.
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The shareholding range analysis is as shown below;
% of
Number of
Shareholders Shareholders

Share Range

14.

Number of
% of
Holdings Shareholders

1

–

1,000

2,318

31.16

1,072,519

0.99

1,001

–

5,000

3,967

53.33

8,575,221

7.94

5,001

–

10,000

655

8.81

4,530,775

4.20

10,001

–

50,000

405

5.45

7,302,690

6.76

50,001

–

100,000

44

0.59

2,997,872

2.78

100,001

–

500,000

40

0.54

8,218,347

7.61

500,001

– 1,000,000

5

0.07

3,955,846

3.66

1,000,001

and above

4

0.05

71,346,730

66.06

7,438

100.00

108,000,000

100.00

Charitable Contributions
The Company did not make any charitable donations during the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
Nil).
In compliance with Section 38(2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, Laws of the
Federation of Nigeria 2004, the Company did not make any donations or gifts to any political association
or for any political purpose during the year (2013: Nil).

15.

Distribution of the Company’s Products
The Company markets its products through its sales personnel. No distributors were used.

16.

Non-Discriminatory Equal Employment Opportunity
The Company is an equal employment opportunity employer. It is the Company’s policy to hire, train,
promote and pay employees based on their job-related qualifications, ability and performance, without
regard to race, colour, creed, religion, national origin, citizenship status, sex, marital status, age, physical
or mental disability, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, or veteran status.

17.

Environmental, Health & Safety Management
The Company conducts all aspects of business in an environmentally sound manner, with care for the
safety and health of our employees, customers, and the general public. As with other areas of the
business, Environmental Health & Safety activities are integrated into the existing management structure
and accountability process. This system helps to achieve continual improvement in Environmental
Health & Safety performance by reducing losses from operational accidents and risks associated with
non-compliance. Improvement in Environmental Health & Safety performance ultimately enhances the
Company’s competitive market position for providing services, products and solutions to the
Company’s customers. The Company recognizes the need for employees with Environmental, Health &
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Safety responsibility to develop and maintain an appropriate level of Environmental, Health & Safety
technical competency.
We strive to minimize the environmental footprint of our operations and products, while also delivering
innovative technologies and solutions designed to help businesses and consumers reduce their own
environmental footprint.
The Company is committed to complying with applicable health and safety regulations related to
protecting employees and providing working conditions that are free from recognized hazards. The
company’s workplace programs are designed to protect the safety and health of employees and to
prevent and mitigate workplace incidents that could arise from abnormal operating conditions and
potential emergency situations.
18.

Employees’ Training
The Company is committed to training and career growth. NCR University (NCRU) provides training
resources and education programs to increase employee productivity and ensure professional growth.
Management, professional and technical expertise are the Company’s major assets and investment in
their further development continues. The Company believes that success depends on ability to develop a
productive, capable organization committed to ongoing learning; employee development is therefore an
integral part of the way the business is managed. The Company invests in tools and opportunities that
empower employees to take charge of their own personal and professional growth and development.
Training is carried out at various levels through both in-house and professional training at its corporate
technical training centres located in Cyprus, United Kingdom and United States of America.

19.

Business Conduct and Ethics
NCR is a principle-based Company, the reputation of our Company is formed by each and every
experience that customers, business partners, suppliers and the community have with us. We treat each
other and our business partners with respect, honesty and fairness. We value the unique qualities,
abilities and perspectives each person brings to a challenge or opportunity, and we also know that as a
team we can achieve together what would remain out of reach for us individually. We communicate
openly and candidly with each other and extend our respect and team spirit to customers, partners,
suppliers and the communities in which we live and work.
l

Customer Dedication: We genuinely care about our customers and are dedicated to serving
them well. We learn their markets, understand their specific goals and objectives, and develop
solutions that deliver business value.

l

Performance: We commit to high performance in all functions. We take personal ownership for
the success of our Company and work together to continuously improve and achieve best-in-class
performance.
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l

Innovation: Throughout our history, NCR’s ability to harness the power of new ideas and put
them to work for our customers in the real world has defined our Company and fuelled our
leadership; innovation powers the engine that drives our success now and in the future.

l

Supplier and Customer Relations: We require our vendors, agents, subcontractors and their
employees to demonstrate honesty, integrity and fairness, and to adhere to our ethical standard of
business operation.

20.

Events after the Reporting Date
As stated in Note 27, there are no other events or transactions that have occurred since the reporting
date which would have a material effect on the financial statements as presented.

21.

Auditors
Ernst & Young was appointed as the Company’s auditors on 13 January 2015 and have expressed their
willingness to continue in office as auditors in accordance with Section 357(2) of the Companies and
Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

OLUFUNKE HUSSAIN
COMPANY SECRETARY
FRC/2013/NBA/00000002577
10 NOVEMBER, 2015
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NCR (Nigeria) Plc is committed to high standards of corporate governance. The company has continued to
embrace the best governance practices required to deliver sustainable value to our shareholders.
During the year ended 31 December, 2014, NCR (Nigeria) Plc complied with the Securities and Exchange
Commissions (SEC) Code of Corporate Governance for Nigeria, International Best Practices on Corporate
Governance and the NCR Principles of Ethics and Compliance.
The primary purpose of the Board is to create and deliver sustainable long-term value to shareholders through
its general supervision of the company’s business.
As part of this goal, NCR has always maintained different and separate roles for the Chairman and Country
General Manager. Presently the company has a five-member Board led by the Chairman who is a non-executive
Director. There are four non – executive Directors and one executive Director on the Board.
All the Directors bring various and varied competencies to bear on all board deliberations. The Board meets
regularly and is responsible for effective control and monitoring of the company’s strategy. The Chairman
directs the Board, ensuring that it operates effectively, while fully discharging its legal and regulatory obligations.
The company’s corporate governance framework is in conformity to the Country’s existing corporate
governance codes and is in line with universally accepted best practices. Under this framework, the Board
delegates responsibility for the day to day management of the company to the Country General Manager.
It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to ensure that all records are accurate and correctly reflect the
financial position of the company. Management implements system controls, comprising policies, standards and
procedures to ensure the safety of assets and the reduction of risk, error, fraud and other irregularities. Both the
internal auditor and the external auditors independently appraise the adequacy of internal controls.
The Board places great emphasis on effective communication with its shareholders. It recognizes the
importance of ensuring an appropriate balance in meeting the many needs of its shareholders and at the same
time building enduring relationships with them.
The Directors’ direct and indirect shareholdings in the Company where it exists are disclosed elsewhere in this
report as required by law.
Employee compliance with the NCR Code of Conduct training and certification which subscribes to high
standards of fair competition is monitored globally.
1.

Composition of the Board of Directors
The Board is currently made up of four (4) Non-Executive Directors and one (1) Executive Director.
All the directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary and advice and services
of other professionals in areas where such advice will improve the quality of their contribution to Board
decision making process.
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2.

Chief Executive Officer
Mr Ahmed Abdel Aziz Hamada, the Country General Manager is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company.

3.

Record of Directors’ Attendance of Board Meetings
The Board held a total of 5 (five) meetings during the year. In accordance with section 258 (2) of the
Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAP C20) Laws of the Federation of Nigeria, 2004 the record of the
Directors’ attendance of Directors’ meetings during 2014 is available for inspection at the Annual
General Meeting.
Attendance of Board meetings are set out below:
Date of Meeting
DIRECTORS

26/2/2014 17/4/2014

2/6/2014

2/7/2014

22/10/2014

Otunba Adekunle Ojora OFR,
CON, FNIM, JP

P

P

P

P

P

Ambassador Hamzat Ahmadu
CON, Walin Sokoto

P

P

P

P

P

Mr. Stelios Fragkos

P

P

P

P

P

Mr. George Flouros

P

P

P

P

P

Mr. Stelios Atalianis

P

CM

CM

CM

CM

Mr. Michael Vallier

NYM

NYM

P

P

P

Mr Ahmed Abdel Aziz Hamada

NYM

NYM

P

P

P

Attendance Keys:
P = Present; A = Absent with Apology; CM = Ceased to be a member; NYM = Not yet a member
The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman. In all cases, written notices of the
meetings along with the agenda were circulated at least 14 days before the meetings. The minutes of the
meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.
4.

Insider Trading and Price Sensitive Information
Directors, insiders and their related persons in possession of confidential price sensitive information
('insider information'') are prohibited from dealing with the securities of the Company where such would
amount to insider trading. Directors, insiders and related parties are prohibited from disposing, selling,
buying or transferring their shares in the Company for a period commencing from the date of receipt of
such insider information until such a period when the information is released to the public or any other
period as defined by the Company from time to time.

5.

The Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is composed of six members made up of three shareholders’ representatives
elected at the 2013 Annual General Meeting for a tenure of one year until the conclusion of the 2014
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Annual General Meeting and three representatives of the Board of Directors nominated by the Board.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr Matthew Akinlade (FCA), a shareholders’ representative.
The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee. During the year under review, the
Committee held Four (4) meetings. The functions of the Audit Committee are governed by the
provisions of Section 359(6) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation
of Nigeria 2004.
6.

Members of the Audit Committee
Mr. Matthew Akinlade FCA - Chairman
Mrs. T. O. Assan - Member
Mr. M. A. Adedoyin - Member
Otunba Adekunle Ojora OFR, CON, FNIM, JP - Member
Ambassador H. Ahmadu CON [Walin Sokoto] - Member
Mr Ahmed Abdel Aziz Hamada - Member
Attendance of Audit Committee Meetings in 2014
Date of Meeting
Members

02/06/2014 19/12/2014

Mr. M. Akinlade FCA - Chairman

P

P

P

P

Otunba Adekunle Ojora OFR,
CON, FNIM, JP

P

P

P

P

Ambassador H. Ahmadu CON
[Walin Sokoto]

P

P

P

P

Mrs. T. O. Assan

P

P

P

P

Mr. M.A. Adedoyin

P

P

P

P

Mr. Ahmed Abdel Aziz Hamada

P

P

P

P

Attendance Keys:
7.

05/02/2014 13/05/2014

P = Present; A = Apology

Committees of the Board
In conformity with the Code of Best practices in Corporate Governance, the Board has established the
following committees to function in respect of issues too complex and/or numerous to be handled by the
entire board. All Board Committees make recommendations for approval by the full Board.
i.

Financial Risk and General Purposes Committee
The committee is established to provide independent and expert advice to assist the Board to
discharge it’s financial and risk management responsibilities.
The Committee does not replace or replicate established management responsibilities and
delegations, the responsibilities of other executive management groups within the Company, or the
reporting lines and responsibilities of either internal audit or external audit functions.
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The committee is also responsible for dealing with urgent business which needs to be dealt with at
short notice.
The Company maintains adequate insurance cover to protect the company against liability and asset
loss.
Members of the committee are as follows:
l

Mr. Michael Vallier - Chairman

l

Mr. Stelios Fragkos

l

Mr. George Flouros

l

Mr Ahmed Abdel Aziz Hamada

There was no formal meeting of the Committee during the period under review
ii.

Appointment, Discipline and Remuneration Committee
The Committee is to set the over-arching principles, parameters and governance framework of the
Company’s remuneration policy and the remuneration of Senior Executives (being those whose
appointment requires Board approval; employees who perform a significant influence function;
employees whose activities have or could have a material impact on the company’s risk profile; and
any other employee as determined by the Committee from time to time) and to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board (including the skills, knowledge, independence,
experience and diversity) and the appointment of members to the Board and make
recommendations to the Board as appropriate.
Members of the Committee are as follows:
l Ambassador H. Ahmadu, CON - Chairman
l Mr. Michael Vallier
l Mr. Stelios Fragkos
l Mr. George Flouros
There was no formal meeting of the Committee during the period under review.

8.

Disclosure of Penalty for Default Filing
Pursuant to the provisions of Appendix III Clause 14(c) of The Nigerian Stock Exchange Post- listing
Requirements, a penalty for late filing of the sum of N 4,800,000.00 (Four Million, Eight Hundred
Thousand Naira) was imposed on the Company.

Olufunke Hussain
Company Secretary
FRC/2013/NBA/00000002577
10th November, 2015
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The Complaint Management Policy of NCR (Nigeria) Plc has been prepared pursuant to the requirements of
the Securities & Exchange Commission's Rules relating to the Complaints Management Framework of the
Nigerian Capital Market (“SEC Rules”) issued on 16th February, 2015 and The Nigerian Stock Exchange
Directive (NSE/LARD/LRD/CIR6/15/04/22) to all Listed Companies (“the NSE Directive”) issued on 22nd
April, 2015.
This policy has been prepared in recognition of the importance of effective engagement in promoting
shareholder/ investor confidence in the company. This Policy sets out the broad framework by which the
company and its Registrar provide assistance regarding shareholder issues and concerns. It also provides
opportunity for shareholders to provide feedback to the Company on matters that affect shareholders.
This Policy only relates to NCR (Nigeria) Plc shareholders and does not extend to its customers, suppliers or
other stakeholders. This Policy is designed to ensure that complaints and enquiries from the Company's
shareholders are managed in a fair, impartial, efficient and timely manner.
This Policy will be made available to shareholders of the company at General Meetings.
GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR MANAGING COMPLAINTS
The following principles shall guide the Company in managing the complaints of shareholders:
1.

COMMITMENT
NCR (Nigeria) Plc is committed to the resolution of complaints and or disputes received from
shareholders. The Company shall proffer solutions that are fair and reasonable to all parties. The
company shall objectively manage and deal fairly with all complaints lodged by shareholders without bias.
The rights of any shareholder, who has lodged a complaint, shall be adequately protected. However, it
shall be within the sole discretion of the Company to take a decision on the investigation of a complaint
considered to be trivial, vexatious or abusive. The Company shall take necessary steps to guard against
the victimisation in respect of all complaints received.

2.

CONFIDENTIALITY
All complaints shall be handled in strict confidence and personal information of complainants shall be
adequately protected.

3.

PROCEDURE FOR COMPLAINTS/ENQUIRIES
A Complaint Lodgement Form shall be provided to all shareholders to lodge their complaint. All
complaints made through authorised third parties or complaints anonymous in nature, shall be duly
recognised and addressed.
Shareholders can make complaints/enquiries and access relevant information in the following manner:
(i) Contact the Registrar: Shareholders who wish to make a complaint/ enquiry shall in the first instance
contact the Registrar, Apel Capital & Trust (Registrars) Limited at 18b, Nnobi Street, Masha, Lagos.
The Registrar manages all the registered information relating to all shareholdings, including
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shareholder name(s), shareholder address and dividend payment instructions amongst others.
Upon receipt of a complaint or an enquiry, the Registrar shall immediately provide the relevant
details of such complaint or enquiry to NCR (Nigeria) Plc for monitoring, record keeping and
reporting purposes.
(ii) Contact the Company Secretary: If the Registrar is unable to satisfactorily address shareholders'
enquiries and resolve their complaints then shareholders should contact the office of the Company
Secretary.
4.

5.

FEEDBACK
Where a complaint or an enquiry is sent directly to the Company,
complaint or enquiry use its best endeavours to ensure that:

NCR shall upon receipt of the

a)

Relevant details of the complaint or enquiry are immediately recorded.

b)

A response is provided by the Company or the Registrar within the specified time frame.

c)

Complaints or enquiries received by e-mail are acknowledged within two (2) working days of
receipt.

d)

Complaints or enquiries received by post are responded to within five (5) working days of receipt.

e)

Complaints or enquiries are resolved within ten (10) working days of receipt.

f)

The Nigerian Stock Exchange is notified, within two (2) working days, of the resolution of a
complaint or enquiry.

g)

Where a complaint/ enquiry cannot be resolved within the stipulated time frame set out above, the
shareholder shall be notified that the matter is being investigated. Delays may be experienced in
some situations, including where documents need to be retrieved from storage.

h)

The same or similar medium that was used for the initial enquiry shall be utilized in providing a
response (whether by email, phone, post or fax), unless otherwise notified to or agreed with the
shareholder.

ELECTRONIC COMPLAINTS REGISTER AND QUARTERLY REPORTING OBLIGATIONS
NCR (Nigeria) Plc shall maintain an electronic complaints register.
The electronic complaints register shall include the following information:
l

The date that the enquiry or complaint was received.

l

Complainant's information (including name, address. Telephone number, e-mail address).

l

Nature and Details of the enquiry or complaint.

l

Action Taken/ Status.

l

Date of the Resolution of the complaint.

Information on the details and status of complaints shall be provided to the Securities and Exchange
Commission and The Nigerian Stock Exchange on a quarterly basis.
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6.

7.

ACCESS TO POLICY
This policy can be accessed by Shareholders through the following avenues:
l

This Policy shall be available on the Company's website.

l

A copy of the Policy may be requested by contacting the Office of the Company Secretary.

l

This Policy shall be made available at general meetings of the Company

REVIEW OF POLICY
This Policy and procedures concerning shareholder enquiries, complaints and feedback may from time to
time be reviewed by the company.
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The Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004, requires the
Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year that give a true and fair view of the state of
financial affairs of the Company at the end of the year and of its profit or loss. The responsibilities include
ensuring that the Company:
a)

keeps proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the
Company and comply with the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, Laws
of the Federation of Nigeria 2004;

b)

establishes adequate internal controls to safeguard its assets and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities; and

c)

prepares its financial statements using suitable accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent
judgments and estimates, and are consistently applied.

The directors accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using
appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, in conformity
with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board,
Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act No 6, 2011 and the provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters
Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004.
The directors are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial
affairs of the Company and of its profit for the year ended 31 December 2014. The directors further accept
responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records that may be relied upon in the preparation of financial
statements, as well as adequate systems of internal financial control.
Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Company will not remain a going
concern for at least twelve months from the date of this statement.

Otunba Adekunle Ojora
Chairman
FRC/2013/IODN/00000002581

Ambassador Hamsat Ahmadu
Director
FRC/2013/IODN/00000002576

10 November 2015
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Report of The Audit Committee
TO MEMBERS OF NCR (NIGERIA) PLC

In accordance with the provisions of Section 359 (6) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, Cap C2O, Laws
of the Federation of Nigeria 2004, we the Members of the Audit Committee of NCR (Nigeria) Plc confirm that
we have carried out our statutory functions under the Act and have examined the Auditor's Report for the year
ended 31 December, 2014 and hereby state as follows:
1.

The scope and planning of the audit are adequate.

2.

The Accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform with the statutory requirements and
agreed ethical practices.

3.

The internal control was being constantly and effectively monitored.

4.

We have reviewed the Auditor's findings on management matters and are satisfied with the management
responses thereon,

Dated this 10th day of November, 2015
Lagos, Nigeria

Mr. Matthew Akinlade FCA
Chairman – Audit Committee
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000002111

Members of the Audit Committee
Mr. Matthew Akinlade FCA - Chairman
Mrs. T. O. Assan - Member
Mr. M. A. Adedoyin - Member
Otunba Adekunle Ojora OFR, CON, FNIM, JP - Member
Ambassador H. Ahmadu CON [Walin Sokoto] - Member
Mr. Ahmed Abdel Aziz Hamada - Member

Secretary to the Committee
Mrs. Olufunke Hussain
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Independent Auditors' Report
TO THE MEMBERS OF NCR (NIGERIA) PLC
Report on the financial statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NCR (Nigeria) Plc, which comprise the statement of financial position as at
31 December 2014, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.
Directors' responsibility for the financial statements
The company's directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards, Financial Reporting Council Act, No 6 2011 and the provisions of the Companies and
Allied Matters Act, CAP C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004 and for such internal control as the Directors determines
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors' responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of NCR (Nigeria) Plc as at 31 December 2014
and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards, Financial Reporting Council Act, No 6, 2011 and the provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, Laws
of the Federation of Nigeria 2004.
Other matter
The financial statements of NCR (Nigeria) Plc for the year ended 31 December 2013 were audited by another auditor who expressed
a modified opinion on those financial statements on 04 June 2014. The modification was based on N499 million gross loss which arose
from the N4.7 billion supplies of Automated Teller Machines made by the Parent Company to NCR (Nigeria) Plc during the year.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the requirement of Schedule 6 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20, Laws of the Federation of
Nigeria 2004, we confirm that:
i)

we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purpose of our audit;

ii)

in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company, so far as appears from our examination of those
books; and

iii)

the Company's statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income account are in
agreement with the books of account.

Yusuf Aliu, FCA/FRC/2012/ICAN/00000000138
For: Ernst & Young
Chartered Accountants
Lagos, Nigeria
10 November 2015

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014
Note
Revenue
Cost of sales

6
7a

Gross profit
Distribution expenses
Administrative expenses
Operating profit/ (loss)
Investment income
Other losses

6,642,862
(6,389,316)

6,107,931
(5,933,390)

253,546

174,541

7b
8

(22,782)
(47,982)

(232,111)
(44,763)

9
10

182,782
32,616
(371)

(102,333)
35,788
(240)

215,027

(66,785)

Profit/ (loss) before tax
Income tax (expense)/ credit

N’000

2013
Restated
N’000

11a

Profit/ (loss)for the year

(57,639)
157,388

18,088
(48,697)

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Re-measurement (loss)/ gains on retirement benefit

22b

Other comprehensive (loss)/ income for the year, net of tax
Total other comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax
Earnings per share data:
Basic/ diluted earnings/ (loss) per share (Naira)

12

(6,419)

15,990

(6,419)

15,990

150,969

(32,707)

1.46

(0.45)

See notes to the financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014
Note

N’000

2013
Restated
N’000

13
22
11c

632,282
37,752
164,584

647,292
30,479
217,262

834,618

895,033

1,317,279
3,329,082
25,598
1,192,963

790,176
2,893,591
126,833
808,404

Total current assets

5,864,922

4,619,004

Total assets

6,699,540

5,514,037

54,000
191,038
14,904

54,000
33,650
21,323

259,942

108,973

1,123,883

-

1,123,883

-

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Retirement benefit assets
Deferred tax assets
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Issued share capital
Retained earnings
Other reserve

14
15
16
17

18a
18b

Total equity
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Total non-current liabilities
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Statement of Financial Position Cont’d
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

2014
N’000

2013
Restated
N’000

4,749,662
561,092
4,961

4,885,167
516,418
3,479

Total current liabilities

5,315,715

5,405,064

Total liabilities

6,439,598

5,405,064

Total equity and liabilities

6,699,540

5,514,037

Note
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Other liabilities
Current tax payable

19
20
11b

Approved by the Directors on 10 November 2015 and signed on its behalf by:

Otunba Adekunle Ojora
Ambassador Hamsat Ahmadu
Chairman
Director
FRC/2013/IODN/00000002581 FRC/2013/IODN/00000002576

Mr. Chukwueke Onyekachi Caleb
Interim Financial Controller
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000013361

See notes to the financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

31 DECEMBER 2014

Issued
capital
N’000

Retained
earnings
N’000

Other
reserve
N’000

Total
N’000

54,000

33,650

21,323

108,973

Profit for the year

-

157,388

-

157,388

Other comprehensive loss for the year

-

-

(6,419 )

Total comprehensive income/ (loss)

-

157,388

(6,419 )

At 31 December 2014

54,000

191,038

14,904

259,942

31 DECEMBER 2013

Issued
capital
N’000

Retained
earnings
N’000

Other
reserve
N’000

Total
N’000

54,000

82,347

5,333

141,680

Restated balance as at 1 January 2014

At 1 January 2013
Restated loss for the year

-

Other comprehensive income for the year

-

Total comprehensive (loss)/ income

-

Restated balance as at 31 December 2013

54,000
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(48,697)
-

-

(6,419)
150,969

(48,697)

15,990

15,990

(48,697 )

15,990

(32,707)

33,650

21,323

108,973
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Statement of Cash Flows
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Notes
Operating activities
Cash receipts from customers
Payment to suppliers and employees
VAT paid
Income tax paid

2014
N’000

2013
N’000

11b

6,815,604
(6,264,419)
(133,494)
(3,479)

4,815,497
(5,511,447)
(98,998)
-

Net cash flows from/ (used in) operating activities

21

414,212

(794,948)

Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceed from disposal of property, plant and equipment

13

(29,653)
-

(31,820)
-

Net cash flows used in investing activities

(29,653)

(31,820)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

384,559
808,404

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

17

1,192,963

(826,768)
1,635,172
808,404

See notes to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

1.

Corporate information
NCR (Nigeria) Plc was incorporated as a Limited Liability Company and commenced business on 9
December 1949 under the name National Cash Register Company (West Africa) Limited, and changed
its name to NCR (Nigeria) Limited in 1974. The company was granted a listing on the Nigerian Stock
Exchange on 30 May 1979 and became known as NCR (Nigeria) Plc on 16 July 1996.
NCR (Nigeria) Plc is a Company domiciled in Nigeria.The company’s principal activity includes provision
of technology and services that help businesses connect, interact and transact with their customers. The
company is a technology company that provides innovative products which include:
l
l
l
l
l

ATM (Automated Teller Machines)
Retail Point of Sales terminals (Point of Sale)
Self Service Kiosks
Self-check-in/out systems
Sale of computer consumables

2.

Basis of preparation

2a.

Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and approved by the
Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria and in accordance with Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP
C20 Laws of the Federation of Nigeria 2004.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Directors on 10 November 2015.

2b.

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Nigerian Naira, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Except otherwise indicated, financial information presented in Naira have been rounded to the nearest
thousands (N’000).

2c.

Composition of financial statements
The financial statements comprise:
l
l
l
l
l

2d.

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Statement of financial position
Statement of changes in equity
Statement of cash flows
Notes to the financial statements

Financial period
These financial statements cover the financial year from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014, with
comparative figures for the financial year from 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Cont’d
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

3.

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all periods presented in these
financial statements.

3a.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, rebates and
sales related taxes but including interest receivable on sales on extended credit and income from the
provision of technical services and agreements. Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity.
Revenue from sale of products
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all the following conditions are satisfied;
l

the Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

l

the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

l

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

l

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; and

l

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Revenue from rendering of services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue
associated with the transaction shall be recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
transaction at the end of the reporting period. Revenue from services rendered is recognized when the
service is rendered in so far as the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably and the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity. In the case of maintenance arrangements,
net sales are recognized on a straight line basis over the contract terms.
3b.

Cost of sales
Cost of sales includes purchase cost of merchandise and directly attributable overheads.

3c.

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Chief Operating Decision Maker. The Chief Operating Decision Maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Area
Controllers.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Cont’d
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

3.

Summary of significant accounting policies - Continued

3d.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that the Company will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date,
and are discounted to present value using a commercial rate where the effect is material. Discounts are
unwound through profit or loss from the date the provision is made up to the date that the expenditure
covered by the provision is incurred.

3e.

Foreign currencies
The financial statements of NCR (Nigeria) Plc are presented in Naira, which is the Company’s functional
currency. In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s
functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Any
resulting exchange differences are included in administration expenses in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.
Non-monetary items measured in terms of historical cost that are denominated in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

3f.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Cont’d
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

3.

Summary of significant accounting policies - Continued
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or credited in
other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive
income.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

3g.

Earnings per share
Earnings per share are calculated by dividing profit or loss for the year by the weighted average number of
ordinary shareholding. Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing profit or loss for the year by
the fully-diluted number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

3h.

Property, plant and equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses.
Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes, or for
purposes not yet determined, are carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Cost includes, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the company’s accounting policy.
Depreciation is not charged on these assets until the assets are available for their intended use.
Depreciation is charged to profit or loss using the straight-line method so as to write off the cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives on the following bases:
Class of assets
Furniture and fittings
Building
Improvement on building
Computer equipment
Plant machinery and equipment

Estimated useful lives
(Years)
5
34
5-10
4
5

The Building was constructed on a land obtained through operating lease. The assets’ residual values and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting date.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Cont’d
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

3.

Summary of significant accounting policies– Continued
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.
Expenses on repairs and maintenance for instance day-to-day service cost and ongoing maintenance cost
are recognized in profit or loss immediately. Major repairs and overhaul costs are capitalized if it will
result in future economic benefits.

3i.

Inventories
Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value using the First-In-First-Out (FIFO)
method. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less estimated cost to
make the sale.

3j.

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are measured at fair value at the date of trade plus directly attributable transaction
costs on initial recognition, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognized in profit or
loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.
Other receivables may be financial assets or non-financial assets. See Note 3k for recognition and
measurement of financial assets. Non-financial assets are measured in accordance with applicable
standard.

3k.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
l
Financial assets
The Company’s financial assets are classified into loans and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables include ‘trade and other receivables’ and ‘cash
equivalents’ in the statement of financial position which are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Cont’d
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

3.

Summary of significant accounting policies - Continued
Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables
when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash on hand, cash at banks and
highly liquid short-term investments with an original maturity of 3 months or less that are easily
convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risks of changes in value.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL.
Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the asset have been affected.
For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:
l significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
l breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
l *it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or
l *the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.
For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Company’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the Company’s average
credit period, as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Cont’d
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

3.

Summary of significant accounting policies - Continued
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the profit
or loss.
For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
Derecognition of financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received/ receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

l

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Cont’d
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

3.

Summary of significant accounting policies - Continued
l Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised as the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s
own equity instruments.
l Financial liabilities
The Company’s financial liabilities (including trade and other payables) are initially measured at fair value.
Subsequently they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Trade and other payables
Trade payables classified as financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently
measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method. Other payables that are within the
scope of IAS 39 are subsequently measured at amortized cost.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

3l.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefits
Defined contribution plan
Employees are members of defined contribution plans. Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution pension plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods
during which services are rendered by employees.
The Company makes provision for retirement benefits in accordance with the Pension Reform Act of
2014. The Contribution by the employer and employee is 12.5% and 8% respectively of the employees’
basic salary, housing and transport allowances.
Defined benefit scheme
For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined by independent
actuaries using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of
each reporting period. Actuarial gains and losses arising from increases or decreases in the present value
of the defined benefit obligation because of changes in actuarial assumptions and experience adjustments
are immediately recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Cont’d
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

3.

Summary of significant accounting policies - Continued
The defined benefit asset or liability recognised in the statement of financial position represents the
present value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations
are to be settled. Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying
insurance policies. Fair value is based on market price information and in the case of quoted securities it is
the published bid price.
Other employee benefits
Other short and long-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense over the period in which
they accrue.

3m. Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
The Company as lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the
Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Company’s net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The Company as lessee
Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the company at their fair value or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses are
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which
case they are capitalised in accordance with the company’s general policy on borrowing costs
Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease except where another more systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the lease asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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3.

Summary of significant accounting policies - Continued

3n.

Current versus non-current classification
The company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current/noncurrent classification.
An asset is current when it is:
l

Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

l

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

l

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period is presented as current asset.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
l

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

l

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

l

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

l

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
4.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 3, the directors are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

4a.

Critical judgements in applying the Company’s accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (which are dealt with
separately below), that the directors have made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements.
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Revenue recognition
Revenue is properly recognised when realized or realizable and the earnings process is complete.
Earning process is assumed complete upon completion of contractual obligations to the customer as
evidenced by performance, transfer of title and risk of loss to the customer and fulfillment of the other
revenue recognition criteria.
4b.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
Allowance for doubtful debts/receivables
Impairment assessment of receivables is done continuously in order to reduce the Company’s financial
exposure to any losses on bad debts, an allowance is established to reduce NCR Plc’s net accounts
receivable, and profit is decreased by the amount of losses expected to occur.
Review of the useful lives of tangible assets
The useful life of the Company’s building was reviewed on 1 January 2011 (date of transition to IFRS) to
34 years based on the unexpired lease term on the land on which the building is erected and management
commitment to occupy throughout the period of the lease. External valuers report was used in
determining the value of the land as at the date of review.
Write down of inventories to net realisable value
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value, after making allowance for slow
moving and damaged items. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less estimated costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution. Cost of finished goods includes
direct purchase cost and other related costs.

5a.

Standards issued but not yet effective
The following standards, amendments and interpretations issued by the IASB have not yet been adopted
by the Company. The standards or amendments will be adopted by the Company in later years. The
company does not currently believe the adoption of these standards or amendments will have a material
impact on its results or financial position, as such no further information is needed.
IAS 16 and IAS 38 Clarifications of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation –
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38
The amendments clarify the principle in IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible
Assets that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are generated from operating a business
(of which the asset is part) rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset.
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5a.

Standards issued but not yet effective (cont’d)
As a result, the ratio of revenue generated to total revenue expected to be generated cannot be used to
depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited circumstances to
amortise intangible assets. The amendments are effective prospectively. Early application is permitted
and must be disclosed. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. These amendments are not expected to have an impact on the Company as depreciation and
amortisation are not based on revenue.
IAS 16- Property, plant & equipment
The IASB issued amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets
prohibiting the use of revenue-based depreciation methods for fixed assets and limiting the use of
revenue-based amortization methods for intangible assets. The amendments are effective prospectively.
This amendment becomes effective 1 January 2016. This standard is not expected to have an impact on
the Company as amortization is not based on revenue.
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer.
The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and recognising revenue.
The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under IFRS. Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early adoption permitted. The company is currently
assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date.
Amendments to IAS 1- IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Early
application is permitted and entities do not need to disclose that fact because the Board considers these
amendments to be clarifications that do not affect an entity’s accounting policies or accounting
estimates.
The amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements clarify, rather than significantly change,
existing IAS1 requirements.
The amendments clarify:
l

The materiality requirements in IAS 1

l

That specific line items in the statement(s) of profit or loss and OCI and the statement of financial
position may be disaggregated

l

That entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the notes to financial statements

l

That the share of OCI of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method must
be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and classified between those items that will or will
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
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Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply when additional subtotals are
presented in the statement of financial position and the statement(s) of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
These amendments will impact the Corporation’s financial statements presentation and disclosure
requirements in IFRS, and do not affect recognition and measurement.
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
The standard introduces new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge
accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early
application permitted. Retrospective application is required, but comparative information is not
compulsory. Early application of previous versions of IFRS 9 (2009, 2010 and 2013) is permitted if the date
of initial application is before 1 February 2015. IFRS 9 removes the multiple classification and
measurement models for financial assets required by IAS 39 – Financial Instruments: Recognition and
measurement and introduces a model that has only two classification categories: amortised cost and fair
value. Classification is determined by the business model used to manage the financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The accounting and presentation of financial
liabilities and for derecognising financial instruments has been transferred from IAS 39 without any
significant changes. The impact on adoption of IFRS 9 is still being assessed by the Company.
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that the portfolio exception in IFRS 13 can be
applied not only to financial assets and financial liabilities, but also to other contracts within the scope of
IFRS 9.
5b.

New and amended standards and interpretations
Amendments to IAS 32- Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
The amendments became effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The
amendments must be applied retrospectively.
The amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation clarifies the meaning of “currently has a
legally enforceable right to set-off”. The amendments also clarify the application of the IAS 32 offsetting
criteria to settlement systems (such as central clearing house systems), which apply gross settlement
mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The amendments clarify that rights of set-off must not only be
legally enforceable in the normal course of business, but must also be enforceable in the event of default
and the event of bankruptcy or insolvency of all of the counterparties to the contract, including the
reporting entity itself. The amendments also clarify that rights of set-off must not be contingent on a
future event.
The amendments clarify that only gross settlement mechanisms with features that eliminate or result in
insignificant credit and liquidity risk and that process receivables and payables in a single settlement
process or cycle would be, in effect, equivalent to net settlement and, therefore, meet the net settlement
criterion. These amendments do not have any impact on the current company’s financial statements.
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The interpretation does not address the accounting for the debit side of the transaction that arises
from recognising a liability to pay a levy. Entities look to other standards to decide whether the
recognition of a liability to pay a levy would give rise to an asset or an expense under the relevant
standards. This standard does not have any impact on the current Company’s financial statements.
IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non- Financial Assets - Amendments
to IAS 36
These amendments became effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The
amendments must be applied retrospectively.
The amendments to IAS 36 Impairment of Assets clarify the disclosure requirements in respect of
fair value less costs of disposal. The amendments remove the requirement to disclose the
recoverable amount for each cash-generating unit for which the carrying amount of goodwill or
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives allocated to that unit is significant.
In addition, the IASB added two disclosure requirements:
l Additional information about the fair value measurement of impaired assets when the
recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal.
l

Information about the discount rates that have been used when the recoverable amount is
based on fair value less costs of disposal using the present value technique. The amendments
harmonise disclosure requirements between value in use and fair value less cost of disposals.

The amendments do not have any impact on the current company’s financial statements.

6.

2014
N’000

2013
N’000

4,698,292
1,887,882
56,688

4,737,000
1,308,988
61,943

6,642,862

6,107,931

Revenue
An analysis of the entity’s revenue is as follows:
Financial Service Group
World Customer Services
System Media Services

NCR (NIGERIA) PLC, ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

50

Notes to the Financial Statements Cont’d
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

6a.

Segment reporting
Products and services from which reportable segments derive their revenues
Information reported to the entity’s Chief operating decision maker (Area Controller) for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance is based on the products delivered or
service rendered to customers.
The entity’s reportable segments under IFRS 8 are therefore as follows:
Financial Service Group - Revenue is derived from sale of equipment and other hardware devices.
World Customer Services - Revenue is derived from provision of hardware and software installation
and maintenance services.
System Media Services - This does not meet the quantitative threshold but the entity has chosen to
report it. Revenue is derived from sales of ATM and media consumables.

6b.

Segment revenue and results
Segment revenue
N’000
Financial Service Group
World Customer Services
System Media Services

4,698,292
1,887,882
56,688

(5,704,883)
(637,855)
(46,578)

6,642,862

(6,389,316)

Segment revenue
N’000
Financial Service Group
World Customer Services
System Media Services

Cost of sales
N’000

4,737,000
1,308,988
61,943
6,107,931

Cost of sales
N’000
(5,236,612)
(646,129)
(50,649)
(5,933,390)

31 Dec 2014
Profit/ (loss)
N’000
(1,006,591)
1,250,027
10,110
253,546
31 Dec 2013
Profit/ (loss)
N’000
(499,612 )
662,859
11,294
174,541

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as the Company’s accounting policies. Segment
profit or loss represents the gross profit or loss earned/ incurred by each segment without allocation of
distribution and administrative expenses, other gains/ losses, investment income as well as finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the Chief Operating Decision Maker for the purpose of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.
There was no intersegment transaction as all revenue generated above was from external customers.
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6c. Segment assets and liabilities
The entity does not report its assets and liabilities on a segmental basis and the reported segments are not
assessed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (Area Controller) on this basis.
6d. Geographical information
All of the Company operations are domiciled in Nigeria.
2014
N’000

2013
N’000

35,864
44,293
6,034,834
274,325

(26,590)
49,976
5,561,464
348,540

6,389,316

5,933,390

7a. Cost of sales (as per functions)
Allowance for slow moving inventory
Depreciation
Direct cost
Salaries and wages

Direct cost represents the cost of purchasing the ATM and other equipment.
7b. Distribution expenses
Bad and doubtful debts
Bank charges
Exchange loss
Fuel and motor running
Promotion and advertisement
Rent and rates
Security
Travelling and accommodation
Withholding tax provision

8.

57,767
506
319
6,666
1,227
24,213
12,266
6,797
(86,979)

5,014
9,241
15,369
(5,598)
503
22,396
10,906
2,623
171,657

22,782

232,111

211
263
3,682
8,500
28,522
6,804

520
525
3,619
13,623
7,764
6,670
12,042

47,982

44,763

Administrative expenses
Overtime wages
Legal fees
Insurance
Audit fees
Miscellaneous and other expenses
Internal charges
Retirement benefits
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9.

2014
N’000

2013
N’000

32,616

35,788

Investment income
Rental income

Investment income represents income earned from sublet of some floors of the Company’s building
2014
2013
N’000
N’000
10. Other losses
Loss on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
11.

371

240

4,961

3,479

4,961

3,479

Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences

52,678

(21,567)

Income tax expense/ (credit) reported in profit or loss

57,639

(18,088)

Income tax
The components of income tax expense are:

11a. Statement of profit or loss
Current income tax:
Company income tax
Education tax

Corporation tax is calculated at 30 per cent (2013: 30 per cent) of the estimated taxable profit for the
year based on the provisions of the Companies Income Tax Act, CAP C21, LFN, 2004 as amended. The
company recorded an assessable loss for the year and thus has no tax liability. Also the Company is not
liable to minimum tax under Section 28A of the Company Income Tax Management Act because more
than 25% of its share capital is imported.
The charge for education tax of 2 per cent (2013: 2 per cent) is based on the provisions of the Education
Tax Act, CAP E4, LFN, 2004.
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Reconciliation of income tax expense/ (credit) for the year to the accounting
profit/ (loss) as per profit or loss:
2014
N’000
Accounting profit/ (loss) before tax
215,027

2013
N’000
(66,785)

Tax at Nigeria’s statutory income tax rate of 30% (2013: 30%)
Non-deductible expenses
Non-taxable income
Education tax

64,508
1,951
(13,781)
4,961

(20,036)
51,569
(53,100)
3,479

57,639

(18,088)

Income tax expense/ (credit) reported in profit or loss
Effective tax rate

27%

27%

3,479
4,961
(3,479)

3,479
-

4,961

3,479

11b. Statement of financial position
Current tax payable
At 1 January
Charge for the year
Payments during the year
At 31 December
11c. Deferred taxation
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Company and
movements thereon during the year.
Statement of
Profit
financial position
or loss
2014
2013
2014
2013
N’000
N’000
N’000
N’000
Property, plant and equipment
Exchange difference
Unrelieved losses
Allowance for impairment on receivable
Decrease in loss on account receivables
Unutilized capital allowance
Allowance for slow moving inventory

(64,052)
4,337
149,558
17,664
28,193
28,884

(64,510)
14,163
223,948
7,685
(103)
17,954
18,125

Net deferred tax assets

164,584

217,262

Deferred tax expense/ (credit)
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9,826
74,390
(9,979)
(103)
(10,239)
(10,759)

(118,593)
(9,582)
121,930
(7,685)
103
(20,239)
12,499

52,678

(21,567)
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to do so.
There was no deferred tax recognized on the retirement benefit obligation. The following is the analysis
of the deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) after offset presented in the statement of financial position:
2014
N’000

2013
N’000

Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax assets

(64,052)
228,636

(64,613)
281,875

Net deferred tax asset

164,584

217,262

At 1 January
(Charge)/ credit for the year

217,262
(52,678)

195,695
21,567

At 31 December

164,584

217,262

Movement in deferred tax during the year is as follows:

PRIOR PERIOD ERROR
In 2013, deferred tax asset of N246.586 million was wrongly computed resulting in a prior year error.
This led to the overstatement of deferred tax asset and understatement of income tax expense in year
2013 of N29.324 million.
This error has however been corrected retrospectively and the comparative figures have been
appropriately restated. As the error relates only to the 2013 financial statements, it is not necessary to
disclose an additional comparative (3rd) column for 2012 in the Statement of Financial Position for 1
January 2013.
The effect of the error on the results of 31 December 2013 are summarised below:
2013
N'000
Statement of profit or loss:
Income tax expense

29,324

Statement of financial position
Deferred tax assets

(29,324)

Net Impact on Equity
Attributable to equity holders

(29,324)

Net Impact on Earnings per share
Basic/ diluted loss per share (N)
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12.

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings/ (loss) per share is calculated by dividing the net profit/ (loss)for the year
attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year.
The Profit/ (loss) and share data used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are:
2014
N’000

2013
N’000

Profit/ (loss)attributable to ordinary equity holders

157,388

(48,697)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic/diluted EPS

108,000

108,000

1.46

(0.45)

Basic /diluted earnings/ (loss)per ordinary share (Naira)
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13.

Property, plant and equipment
Plant
Computer machinery &
equipment
equipment
N’000
N’000

Furniture
and fittings
N’000

Buildings
N’000

Cost:
At 1 January 2013
Additions
Disposals

25,636
8,440
-

664,895
-

22,282
18,011
(12,792)

81,967
5,369
-

794,780
31,820
(12,792)

At 31 December 2013
Reclassification
Additions
Disposals

34,076
(6,168)
698
-

664,895
-

27,501
5,347
(559)

87,336
6,168
23,608
-

813,808
29,653
(559)

At 31 December 2014

28,606

664,895

32,289

117,112

842,902

Depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 2013
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals

14,101
6,815
-

43,048
19,562
-

16,128
6,401
(12,552 )

55,815
17,198
-

129,092
49,976
(12,552 )

At 31 December 2013
Reclassification
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals

20,916
(571)
4,525
-

62,610
22,167
-

9,977
7,154
(189 )

73,013
571
10,447
-

166,516
44,293
(189 )

At 31 December 2014

24,870

84,777

16,942

84,031

210,620

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2014

3,736

580,118

15,347

33,081

632,282

At 31 December 2013

13,160

602,285

17,524

14,323

647,292

Total
N’000

13a. Impairment losses recognised in the year
No impairment loss has been recognized as none of the property, plant and equipment has suffered
impairment.
13b. Assets pledged as security
The company does not have any asset pledged as security for liabilities.
13c. Contractual commitments
There is no other contractual commitment for the purchase of items of property, plant and equipment
that has not been accounted for.
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14.

2014
N’000

2013
N’000

833,616
25,525
409,926
144,493

402,972
21,546
341,563
84,512

1,413,560
(96,281)

850,593
(60,417)

1,317,279

790,176

Inventories
Finished equipment
Systems media accessories
Service parts (reworkable)
Service parts (non-reworkable)
Allowance for slow moving inventory (Note 14a)

The value of inventories recognized in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2014 amounted
to N6,034,834,000 (2013: N5,561,464,000). There was no inventory write-off during the year
(2013:Nil).
2014
2013
N’000
N’000
14a. Allowance for slow moving inventory for components is as below:
Systems media accessories
2,923
Service parts (reworkable)
66,707
36,517
Service parts (non-reworkable)
29,574
20,977
96,281

60,417

Movement in allowance for slow moving inventory during the year is as below:
At 1 January
Charge/ (write back) for the year

60,417
35,864

87,007
(26,590)

At 31 December

96,281

60,417

Write back in prior year represents reversal of provisions made on items of inventory which the company
was able to sell in the subsequent period, thus making the provision not to be required.
15.

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables (Note 15a)
Allowance for doubtful debts (Note 15b)
Withholding tax receivable (Note 15c)
Rent receivable
Due from related parties (Note 24c)
Vat recoverable
Other receivables (Note 15d)

1,983,609
(58,879)
1,924,730
1,315,891
16,443
34,660
33,924
3,434
3,329,082
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15a. Trade receivables
Trade receivables disclosed above are carried at amortised cost less allowance for impairment losses.
Invoices are due for payment as soon as they are raised except when customers are pre-billed or allowed
an extended credit period. No interest is charged on the overdue receivables. The company has
recognised an allowance for doubtful debts of 100% against all receivables over 360 days because
historical experience has been that receivables that are past due beyond 360 days are not likely to be
recoverable. When trade receivable, or the oldest portion of an installment or sales receivable, has been
due for 450 days (15 months); it is assumed to be uncollectible and the entire receivable is written off.
Before accepting any new customer, the Company uses an internal credit scoring system to assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Credit limits are reviewed
periodically by the Area Controller.
Ageing of trade receivables at the reporting date was:

0 - 30 days
30 - 90 days
91-180 days
181- 360 days
Above 360 days

2014
N’000

2013
N’000

882,110
328,078
494,930
121,367
98,245

1,090,201
689,549
185,039
55,393
-

1,924,730

2,020,182

15b. Allowance for doubtful debts
Allowances are made for credit losses on all receivables in order to reduce the Company’s financial
exposure to any losses on bad debts. There are no trade receivables which are past due at the reporting
date against which an allowance has not been made. Allowance for credit losses are reversed if all
amounts are recovered.
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired trade receivables. The impairment
recognised represents the difference between the carrying amount of these trade receivables and the
amounts that are deemed recoverable by the Company. The company does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances nor does it have a legal right of offset against any
amounts owed by the Company to the counterparty.
In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable the Company considers any change in the credit
quality of the trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date.
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See below for movement in allowance for doubtful receivables.

At 1 January
Impairment losses recognised
Amount written-off during the year as uncollectible
Amount recovered during the year
At 31 December

Collectively impaired
2014
2013
N’000
N’000
25,618
27,027
47,910
20,819
(5,734)
(18,107)
(8,915)
(4,121)
58,879

25,618

Concentration risk
The company’s receivables are due from about 22 Companies (2013: 17 Companies) operating in the
banking sector and about 71.36% (2013: 72.4%) of the receivables are due from 4 Customers (2013: 3
customers). Concentration risk is minimized by ensuring that customers make over 50% deposit of
entire project before placing order thereby reducing account receivable exposure. Effort is high on
penetrating new accounts and dominating the account to neutralize the concentration on few larger
customers.
15c. Withholding tax receivable
The utilization of the withholding tax receivable above is subject to the tax exposure during the year.
2014
2013
N’000
N’000
Withholding tax receivable
1,656,496
1,221,913
Allowance for withholding tax receivables
(340,605 )
(427,584)
1,315,891

794,329

Movement in allowance for withholding tax receivables is as below:
At 1 January
(Write back)/ allowance for the year

427,584
(86,979 )

255,927
171,657

At 31 December

340,605

427,584

15d. Other receivable
Allowance for other receivable

22,206
(18,772)

1,232
-

3,434

1,232

Movement in allowance for other receivables is as below:
At 1 January
Allowance/ (write back) for the year

18,772

11,684
(11,684)

At 31 December

18,772
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16.

2013
N’000

9,921
15,677

112,964
13,869

25,598

126,833

Prepayments
Rent prepaid
Other prepaid expenses

17.

2014
N’000

Prepayments represent payments made in advance for rent of office space and other expenses such as
staff housing allowances, insurance premium, bond, APG fee etc.
2014
2013
N’000
N’000
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand
Cash at bank

1,868
1,191,095

1,915
806,489

Cash and cash equivalents

1,192,963

808,404

Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of financial position comprise cash in hand and cash at bank.
The carrying amount of these assets is approximately equal to their fair value.For the purposes of the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents equate cash and cash equivalents as defined above
because the Company does not have bank overdrafts.
At 31 December 2014, the Company had restriction on N232 million in its Guarantee Collateral Account.

18.

2014
N’000

2013
N’000

Authorised share capital:
200,000,000 ordinary shares of 50k each

100,000

100,000

Issued and fully paid:
108,000,000 ordinary shares of 50k each

54,000

54,000

14,904

21,323

Share capital and other reserve

18a. Share capital

18b. Other reserve
This represents remeasurement on defined benefit plan.
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19.

2014
N’000

2013
N’000

65,599
499,589
87,415
5,220,942

104,524
443,417
81,992
4,255,234

5,873,545

4,885,167

Trade and other payables
Trade payable
Accruals and other creditors
Unclaimed dividend
Due to related companies (Note 24c)
Less:
Non-current portion of trade and other payables
Current portion of trade and other payables

(1,123,883)
4,749,662

4,885,167

Non-current portion of trade and other payables represents the portion of an amount due to a related
company which was agreed by both parties that no repayment is due within the next 12 months. The
payable does not attract interest.
Terms and Conditions
Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing
costs. No interest is charged on the trade payables. The company has financial risk management policies
in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms.
The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates their fair value.

20.

2014
N’000

2013
N’000

172,495
388,597

139,655
376,763

561,092

516,418

139,655
(139,655)
172,495

268,868
(268,868)
139,655

172,495

139,655

Other liabilities
Deferred income (Note 20a)
Deposit by customers (Note 20b)

20a. Deferred income
At 1 January
Utilised during the year
Additions during the year
At 31 December 2015

Deferred income represents accrued income on advances received from customers in respect of
projects that are still on-going as at the reporting date and obligations resulting from the income
received in advance from customers which risks and rewards have not been transferred to customers.
This is a non-interest bearing liability.
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20b. Deposit by customers
This represents advances received from customers in respect of projects that have not been carried out.
This is a non-interest bearing liability.

21.

2013
N’000

157,388

(48,697)

44,293
370

49,976
240

202,051

1,519

Operating activities
Net Profit/ (loss) after taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Change in assets and liabilities
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories
Increase in trade and other receivables
Decrease/ (increase) in prepayments
Increase in trade and other payables
Increase in income tax liabilities
Decrease/ (increase) in deferred tax assets
Increase in retirement benefit assets
Increase/ (decrease) in other liabilities
Net cash flows from/ (used in) operating activities

22.

2014
N’000

(527,103)
(435,491)
101,235
988,378
1,482
52,678
(13,692)
44,674

67,952
(910,283)
(110,880)
634,067
3,479
(21,567)
(10,109)
(449,126)

414,212

(794,948)

Retirement benefit plan

22a. Defined contribution plan
The company makes provision for retirement benefits in accordance with the Pension Reform Act of
2014. The contribution by the employer is 12.5% and 8% respectively of the employees’ basic salary,
housing and transport allowances. The total expense recognized in profit or loss of N22.7 million (2013:
N17 million) represents contributions payable to these plans by the Company at rates specified in the
rules of the plans.
22b. Defined benefit plan
The company operates a staff gratuity scheme for all its’ confirmed staff. The scheme provides for gratuity
benefits at exit of the staff as described below;
Years of service

Benefits

Less than 5 years

Nil

5 years and above

1 month gross salary for each year of service
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The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation
were carried out at 31 December 2014 by HR Nigeria Limited, Associate, Society of Actuaries, America
and Fellow, Institute of Actuaries, England.
The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service
cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:
Financial assumptions
31 December 31 December
2014
2013
Long term average
Discount Rate (p.a.)
Average Pay Increase (p.a.)

15%
12%

14%
12%

The company assumes that salaries will increase at a real rate of 6.2% per annum above inflation rate.
Amount recognised in profit or loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

Current service cost
Interest on obligation
Interest return on plan assets

2014
N’000

2013
N’000

11,905
8,303
(13,404)

13,177
8,374
(9,509)

6,804

12,042

The expense for the year is included in the employee benefits expenses in administration expenses.
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuary gains on liability during the year
Actuary losses on assets during the year
Actuary losses/ (gains) recognized in OCI
Deferred tax
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2014
N’000
(4,164)
10,583

2013
N’000
(16,372)
382

6,419
-

(15,990)
-

6,419

(15,990)
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The amount included in the statement of financial position arising from the entity’s obligation in respect of
its defined benefit plans is as follows:
2014
2013
N’000
N’000
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Net asset arising from defined benefit obligation

(49,403)
87,155

(60,058)
90,537

37,752

30,479

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation in the current year were as follows.

At 1 January
Current service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial gains - change in assumption
Actuarial losses/ (gains) - experience
Benefits paid from plan/company
At 31 December

2014
N’000

2013
N’000

60,058
11,905
8,303
(6,942)
2,778
(26,699)

69,461
13,177
8,374
(8,244)
(8,128)
(14,582)

49,403

60,058

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year were as follows.

At 1 January
Interest return on plan assets
Actuarial losses
Contributions from the employer
Benefits paid
At 31 December

2014
N’000

2013
N’000

90,537
13,404
(10,583)
20,496
(26,699)

73,841
9,509
(382)
22,151
(14,582)

87,155

90,537

The Company expects to make a contribution of N21.07million (2013: N20.86million) to the defined
benefit plans during the next financial year.
Funded status of defined benefit plan

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Funded status -Surplus

NCR (NIGERIA) PLC, ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2014
N’000

2013
N’000

(49,403)
87,155

(60,058)
90,537

37,752

30,479
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22.

Retirement benefit plan – Continued
Reconciliation of Net Plan Asset recognised in the statement of financial position
2014
N’000

2013
N’000

At 1 January
Benefit expense recognized in profit or loss
Employer contribution made during the year
Actuarial (gains)/ losses recognised on OCI

30,479
(6,804)
20,496
(6,419)

4,380
(12,042)
22,151
15,990

At 31 December

37,752

30,479

Demographic assumptions
Life expectancy
The rates of life expectancy assumed for employees are the rates published in the A67/70 Ultimate
Tables, published jointly by the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries in the UK. We have rated this down by
one year to more accurately reflect mortality in Nigeria.
Sample age

25
30
35
40
45

Number of deaths in year of age
out of 10,000 lives
2014
2013
7
7
7
7
9
9
14
14
26
26

Withdrawal from service:
Age Band
Less than or equal to 30
31 – 39
40 – 44
45 – 50
51– 60

NCR (NIGERIA) PLC, ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rate
2014
3%
2%
2%
0%
0%

2013
3%
2%
2%
0%
0%

66

Notes to the Financial Statements Cont’d
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Sensitivity Analysis on Accrued liability on Defined Benefit Obligation

Base

2014
N’000

2013
N’000

49,403

60,058

Discount rate

+1%
-1%

5,743
(6,942)

6,878
(8,244)

Salary Increase

+1%
-1%

(7,329)
6,125

(8,629)
(7,284)

-1 Year
+1 Year

(73)
65

(727)
658

Life Expectancy

23. Financial Instruments
23a. Capital management
The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. There were no changes in the Company’s
approach to capital management during the year.
The company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of its capital structure.
The capital structure of the Company consists of equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained earnings. The company is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements.
At the reporting date, the Company’s debt to adjusted capital ratios is as below:
2014
N’000
Total Liabilities
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
Net debt
Total capital
Total capital and net debt
Debt to adjusted capital ratio
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2013
N’000

6,439,598
(1,192,963)

5,405,064
(808,404)

5,246,635

4,596,660

259,942

108,973

5,506,577

4,705,633

0.95

0.98
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23b. Categories of financial instruments
The company’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at the reporting date is tabulated below:

Financial assets
Trade and other receivables**
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

2014
N’000

2013
N’000

1,979,267
1,192,963

2,097,489
808,404

3,172,230

2,905,893

5,873,545

4,885,167

** This is Trade and other receivables excluding VAT and Withholding Tax receivables.
23c. Financial risk management objectives
The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risks. The company’s senior
management team is responsible for monitoring its exposure to each of the mentioned risks. The risk
framework comprises a treasury policy approved by the board. This policy provides guidance over all
treasury and financed-related matters and is underpinned by delegated authority guidelines and detailed
procedures. The main objective of the policy are to ensure that sufficient liquidity exists to meet the
operational needs of the business and the impact of foreign exchange on the Company’s net profit.
23c.1 Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risks affecting the entity are foreign exchange currency risk.
Foreign currency risk management
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The company undertakes transactions
denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise.
Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters. The company’s exposure to
the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates is high as some of its transactions are carried out mostly in US
dollar with other related parties. Foreign exchange exposure is monitored by the Company’s treasury
unit.
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The Naira carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

Monetary assets (USD)
Trade receivables
Bank balance

Monetary liabilities (USD)
Trade payables

2014
N’000

2013
N’000

34,660
3,056

57,596
12,908

37,716

70,504

(5,220,942)

(4,255,234)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies with related sister companies;
consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. The company is mainly exposed to the US
Dollars. The amounts outstanding have fixed rates and subject to insignificant risk of change.
The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 10%, increase and decrease in Naira against US
Dollars. 10 percent is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonable possible change in
foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items. A
positive number below indicates an increase in profit where Naira against the relevant currency, there
would be comparable impact on the profit, and the balances below would be negative.

Naira strengthens by 10% against the US Dollar
Naira weakens by 10% against the US Dollar

2014
N’000

2013
N’000

410,716

265,658

(410,716)

(265,658)

The exposure to dollar is mainly due to outstanding trade receivables and trade payables. 90% of trade
receivables are due in dollars. The trade payables are mainly amounts due to related entities ton NCR.
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23c.2 Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Company.
The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) and
from its investing activities, including deposits with banks and other financial institutions. The Company
has a credit control function that weekly monitors trade receivables and resolves credit related
matters. Weekly collection report is also done at the country level to the Area Controller.
Maximum exposure to credit risks
The carrying value of the Company’s financial assets represents its maximum exposure to credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

Trade receivables
Other receivables
Cash at bank

2014
N’000

2013
N’000

1,924,730
54,537
1,191,095

2,020,182
77,307
806,489

3,170,362

2,903,978

Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. The company has adopted a
policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss
from defaults. A sales representative is attached to each customer and outstanding customer
receivables are regularly monitored by the representative. The requirement for impairment is analysed
at each reporting date on an individual basis for all customers. The company evaluates the
concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low as customers consists of large and
reputable financial institutions that are subjected to financial scrutiny by various regulatory bodies.
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury
department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Surplus funds are spread amongst reputable
commercial banks and funds must be within treasury limits assigned to each counterparty.
Counterparty treasury limits are reviewed by the Company’s financial controller periodically and may
be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Area Controller. The limits are set to
minimize the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through potential
counterparty’s failure. The company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the
statement of financial position is its carrying amount.
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23c.3 Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company is unable to meet its current and future cash flow obligations
as and when they fall due, or can only do so at excessive cost. This includes the risk that the Company is
unable to meet settlement obligations to the acquiring banks due to failure of an issuing bank to pay.
23d.

Maturity analysis of financial liabilities
The company monitors its risk to a shortage of funds by maintaining a balance between continuity of
funding and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities. To manage liquidity risk, bills of collection are used for trade
purchases and most of the purchases are from related entities who can allow an extended credit period
if necessary.
Maturity analysis of financial instruments
The maturity profile of the Company’s recognised financial liabilities is detailed below:
31 December 2014
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables

31 December 2013
Financial liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables

23e.

0 - 3 months
N’000

3 - 6 months
N’000

Over 6 months
N’000

Total
N’000

65,599
4,684,063

-

1,123,883

65,599
5,807,946

4,749,662

-

1,123,883

5,873,545

0 - 3 months
N’000

3 - 6 months
N’000

Over 6 months
N’000

Total
N’000

104,524
4,780,643

-

-

104,524
4,780,643

4,885,167

-

-

4,885,167

Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortised cost
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the financial statements approximate their fair values.
2014
2013
Carrying Amount
Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
Financial assets
N’000
N’000
N’000
N’000
Trade receivables
1,924,730
1,924,730
2,020,182 2,020,182
Other receivables
1,404,352
1,404,352
873,409
873,409
Cash and cash equivalents
1,192,963
1,192,963
808,404
808,404

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

4,522,045

4,522,045

3,701,995

3,701,995

5,873,545

5,694,061

4,885,167

4,885,167

5,873,545

5,694,061

4,885,167

4,885,167
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24.

Related party information

24a.

Ultimate controlling party
NCR Corporation USA
NCR Corporation USA holds 61.76% of the Company’s equity and it is the ultimate controlling party.

24b.

Nature of related party transactions
During the year, the Company purchased goods from NCR Corporation and its affiliates. The Company
recorded total revenue of N6.6 billion (2013: N6.1 billion). Out of this amount, N4.7 billion (2013: N4.7
billion) related to the supply and installation of Automated Teller Machines (ATMs) which were
purchased from NCR Global Solution, the parent Company. The Company realized a gross loss of
N1.007 billion (2013: N499 million) from the transaction during the year.
The company also transacts with fellow subsidiaries in respect of exchange of spare parts and other
service functions. The values of these transactions for the year and the related balances as at the
reporting date are as follows:

Purchase of goods
NCR Global solutions - Hardware
NCR Global Holdings Limited - Consumables

24c.

2014
N’000

2013
N’000

4,035,131
20,191

3,856,345
193,568

4,055,322

4,049,913

Related party outstanding balances
Analysis of the outstanding to/from fellow subsidiaries at the reporting date:

Due to related parties
NCR Global Solutions
NCR WSPC Peachtree
NCR Dubai
NCR Middle East
NCR Egypt
NCR Shajar
NCR Pakistan
NCR European Logistics Centre
NCR North Africa
NCR Dundee
Other related companies
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2014
N’000

2013
N’000

5,059,500
32,764
6,095
11,002
54,874
4,054
2,945
308
4,263
45,137

3,997,198
7,237
21,893
82,432
19,569
48,153
17,091
2,878
45,171
7,624
5,988

5,220,942

4,255,234
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Due from related parties
NCR Ghana
NCR United Kingdom
NCR Corporate
NCR Global ISA Pool
Other related companies

2014
N’000

2013
N’000

7,173
5,262
22,225

9,154
253
2,762
45,006
421

34,660

57,596

The above entities are all affiliates of NCR Corporation USA, the entity’s parent Company and ultimate
controlling party.
The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or
received. No provisions have been made for doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related
parties.
There are no outstanding loans to key management personnel as at the reporting date.
24d. Identity of key management personnel
The directors (both executive and non-executive) and key management personnel are:
Otunba Adekunle Ojora

-

Chairman

Ambassador Hamzat Ahmadu

-

Non-executive Director

Mr. Stelios Fragkos

-

Non-executive Director

Mr. George Flouros

-

Non-executive Director

Mr. Stelios Atalianis

-

Non-executive Director

Mr. Ahmed Abdel Aziz Hamada

-

Country Manager

Mr. Micheal Vallier

-

Non-executive Director

Mrs. Olufunke Hussain

-

Company Secretary

The table below shows the number of Directors of the Company (excluding the Chairman) whose
emoluments during the year, excluding pension contributions, fell within the bands shown below:
Range (N)
1,000,000 – 2,000,000
12,000,000 and above
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1

Number
1

1

1
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25.

26.

Remuneration of key management personnel
The remuneration of the Directors, who are the key management personnel of the Company, is set out
below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures.

The director’s emoluments comprise:

2014
N’000

2013
N’000

Fees
Short-term benefits

2,500
29,664

2,500
11,673

32,164

14,173

Commitments and contingencies
The directors are of the opinion that all known commitments and liabilities which are relevant in assessing
the Company’s state of affairs have been taken into consideration in the preparation of these financial
statements.
The company had an Advance Payment Guarantee of N172 million as at 31 December 2014 in favour of a
customer for the supply and upgrade of Automated Teller Machines (2013: Nil).

27.

Events after the reporting date
No events or transactions have occurred since the reporting date, which would have a material effect
upon the financial statements at that date or which need to be mentioned in the financial statements in
order to make them not misleading as to the financial position or results of operations.

28. Information relating to employees
(a)

The average number of persons employed full time by the Company during the year, excluding Directors
were as follows:
2014
2013
Numbers
Numbers
Controllership
3
3
Financial Service Group
5
3
Worldwide Customer Services
30
27
Professional Services
8
7
Interactive Printers Solutions
1
1
47
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Salaries and wages including staff bonuses
Contributions to pension scheme

(b)

2013
N’000
331,462
17,078

274,325

348,540

Employees of the Company, other than Directors, whose duties were wholly or mainly discharged in
Nigeria, received remuneration (excluding pension contributions) in the following ranges:

N
420,001
900,001
2,000,001
4,000,001
6,000,001

29.

2014
N’000
251,565
22,760

N
–
900,000
– 2,000,000
– 4,000,000
– 6,000,000
– 8,000,000
Above 8,000,001

2014
Numbers

2013
Numbers

10
25
6
4
2

12
21
4
2
2

47

41

Reclassification
Certain reclassifications were made to the reported balances in the prior year in order to conform to the
current year’s presentation.
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2014
N’000
Revenue
Bought-in-materials and services – Local

Investment income
Value added

%

2012
N’000

6,642,862

6,107,931

(6,141,833)

(5,811,988 )

501,029

295,943

32,616

35,788

533,645

331,731

%

Applied as follows:
To pay employees:
- as salaries, wages and other benefits

274,325

52

348,540

105

4,961

1

3,479

1

44,293
52,678
157,388

8
10
29

533,645

100

To pay Government:
- as Company taxes
To provide for enhancement of assets and expansion:
- for assets replacement (depreciation)
- deferred tax
- profit/ (loss) for the year

49,976
15
(21,567) (6)
(48,697) (15)
331,731

100

The value added represents the wealth created through the use of the Company’s assets by its own and its
employees’ efforts. This statement shows the allocation of wealth amongst employees, government and that
retained for future creation of wealth.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

2014
N’000
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES:
Property, plant and equipment
632,282
Retirement benefit assets/ (obligations)
37,752
Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)
164,584
Net current assets/ (liabilities)
549,207
Trade and other payables – non-current
(1,123,883)

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUND
Issued share capital
Retained earnings
Other reserve

2013
N’000

31 DECEMBER
2012
2011
N’000
N’000

647,292
30,479
217,262
(786,060)
-

665,688
4,380
195,695
(724,083 )
-

259,942

108,973

141,680 1,534,128 1,620,083

54,000
191,038
14,904

54,000
33,650
21,323

259,942

108,973

54,000
82,347
5,333

686,625
686,520
5,858
(3,716)
(150,936) (172,494)
992,581 1,109,773
-

54,000
54,000
1,471,523 1,566,083
8,605
-

141,680 1,534,128 1,620,083

IFRS

LOCAL
GAAP

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS:
Revenue

6,642,862 6,107,931

Profit/ (loss) before taxation
Income tax expense

215,027
(57,639)

(66,785) (1,148,910 )
18,088
83,734

Profit/ (loss) after taxation

157,388

(48,697) (1,065,176 )

Dividend proposed
PER 50K SHARE DATA: Naira
Earnings/ (loss) (basic)
Earnings/ (loss)(diluted)
Dividend (basic)

2010
N’000

-

1.46
1.46
-

-

(0.45)
(0.45)
-

6,463,898

-

(9.86 )
(9.86 )
-

2,855,485 2,041,947
355,089 1,061,499
(125,649) (1,401,412)
229,440

(339,913)

324,000

324,000

2.12
2.12
3

(3.15)
(3.15)
3

NOTES
Earnings/ (loss) per share are based on the profit/ (loss) after taxation and the number of issued and fully paid
ordinary shares at the end of each financial year.
Dividend per share is based on dividend declared and number of issued and fully paid ordinary shares at the end
of each financial year.
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Shareholders’ Information

I.

SHARE CAPITAL HISTORY
The capital of the company is One Hundred Million Naira (N 100,000,000) divided into Two Hundred
Million (200,000,000) ordinary shares of fifty kobo (50 kobo) each
1. The capital of the Company at incorporation in 1949 was £10,000.
2. The capital of the Company was increased from £10,000 to £25,000 in shares of £1 each by
Special Resolution passed on 15th November, 1954.
3. The capital of the Company was increased from £25,000 to £35,000 in shares of £1 each by
Special Resolution passed on 10th September, 1956.
4. The capital of the Company was increased from £35,000 to £70,000 in shares of £1 each by
Special Resolution passed on 17th October, 1959.
5. The capital of the Company was increased from £70,000 to £170,000 in shares of £1 each by
Special Resolution passed on 16th June, 1964.
6. The capital of the Company was increased from £170,000 to £200,000 in shares of £1 each by
Special Resolution dated 29th, October, 1965.
7. The capital of the Company was increased from £200,000 to £400,000 in shares of £1 each by
Special Resolution passed on 12th August, 1967.
8. Each of the existing shares of the N2 (£1) each in the capital of the Company was sub-divided
into four shares of 50K each by Special Resolution passed on 19th , September, 1977.
9. The capital of the Company was increased from N 800,000 to N 4,500,000 in shares of 50 kobo
each by Special Resolution passed on 19th, September, 1977.
10. The capital of the Company was increased from N 4,500,000 to N 9,000,000 in shares of 50
kobo each by Special Resolution passed on 28th June, 1990.
11. The capital of the Company was increased from N 9,000,000 to N 27,000,000 in shares of 50
kobo each by Special Resolution passed on 5th August, 1993.
12. The capital of the Company was increased from N 27,000,000 to N 100,000,000 in shares of 50
kobo each by Special Resolution passed on 16th July, 1996.
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Shareholders’ Information cont’d

II.

BONUS HISTORY
Since becoming a Public Company in 1990, the Company had declared and issued a number of
Script Shares

III.

III.

S/N

DATE ISSUED

NARRATION

RATIO

1

November 7,1990

BONUS

1:1

2

March 3,1994

BONUS ‘93

1:3

3

July 4,1996

BONUS ‘96

5:4

4

July 6, 1998

BONUS ‘98

1:1

TEN YEAR DIVIDEND HISTORY
S/No

Div. Pmt. No.

Div. Year

Dividend declared/ share

1

NIL

2004

NIL

2

NIL

2005

0.05k

3

24

2006

NIL

4

NIL

2007

NIL

5

NIL

2008

NIL

6

NIL

2009

0.05k

7

25

2010

300k

8

26

2011

300k

9

27

2012

NIL

10

NIL

2013

NIL

UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS
Our records show that some dividend warrants have not been presented to the Bank for
payment while others have been returned to the Registrar as unclaimed because the addresses
could not be traced. Members affected are advised to contact the Company Secretary or the
registrars, Apel Capital & Trust (Registrars) Limited, 18b Nnobi Street, Masha, Surulere, Lagos.
Tel: 01 -8739028, 01-740144, 01-7401445
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Application Form
for e-Bonus and e-Dividend Payment Mandate

[PLEASE COMPLETE AND APPEND YOUR SIGNATURE AND RETURN TO APEL CAPITAL & TRUST (REGISTRARS) LIMITED,
18B NNOBI STREET, MASHA, SURULERE, LAGOS.

I / We hereby indemnify Apel Capital & Trust (Registrars) Limited against loss (es) and /or damage(s) that may arise from
the execution/adoption of this mandate

Note:
(i) Please be informed that by filling and sending this form to our Registrar, Apel Capital & Trust (Registrars) Limited for processing, you have applied for
the e-Dividend and e-Bonus; thereby, authorizing NCR (Nigeria) Plc to credit your account (in respect of dividend and bonus) electronically.
(ii) Please ensure our Registrars, Apel Capital & Trust (Registrars) Limited is notified of any subsequent change in the above information.
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Proxy Form

63RD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO BE HELD AT THE

RESOLUTIONS

FOR

AGAINST WITHHELD

AGIP RECITAL HALL, MUSON CENTRE, 8/9 MARINA,
ONIKAN, LAGOS ON WEDNESDAY 2ND DECEMBER,

Statements

2015 AT 11.00.A.M.
I / We …………………………………….....……………………..
(Name of Shareholder (s) IN BLOCK LETTERS PLEASE

of……………………………………………….....………………
being a shareholder(s) of NCR (Nigeria) Plc hereby appoint
**………………………………………………........................…
……………………………………………………........................
or failing him the Chairman of the meeting as my /our proxy to act
and vote on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on Wednesday 2nd December, 2015 and at
any adjournment thereof.
Dated this ............... day of .......................................... 2015
Shareholder's Signature ......................................................
*Delete as necessary

1. To receive the Financial

2. To re-elect as Director
Mr. George Flouros
3. To authorize the
Directors to fix the
remuneration of Auditors
4. To elect members of the
Audit Committee
5. To approve the
remuneration of the
Directors.
Please indicate with “x” in the appropriate box how you wish
your votes to be cast on the resolutions set out above.

Note:
l Shareholder's name is to be inserted in block letters please. In the case of joint Shareholders, any one of such may complete this
form, but the names of all joint shareholders must be stated.
l A shareholder(s) who is/are unable to attend an Annual General Meeting is/are allowed by law to vote by proxy. The above form has
been prepared to enable you exercise your right to vote, in case you cannot personally attend the meeting.
l Provision has been made on this form for the Chairman of the meeting to act as your proxy, but if you wish, you may insert in the blank
space on the form (marked**) the name of the person, whether a shareholder(s) of the company or not, who will attend and vote on
your behalf instead of the Chairman of the meeting.
l Unless so instructed the proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his/her discretion. Please sign the above proxy form and post it to
reach the Registrars or the Company Secretary at the registered office of the Company not later than 48 hours before the time of
holding the meeting.
l If executed by a Corporation, the proxy form should be sealed under its common seal or under the hand of some officer or an
attorney duly authorized in writing.

NCR (Nigeria) Plc

SHAREHOLDERS ADMISSION FORM
Please admit bearer of this form or his/her appointed proxy to the 63rd Annual General Meeting of NCR (Nigeria) Plc to be held at
the Agip Recital Hall, Muson Centre, 8/9 Marina, Onikan, Lagos, on Wednesday 2nd December, 2015 at 11.00am.
Name of person attending
Name of Shareholder
Signature of Shareholder

No. of Shares held
Signature of Proxy

Notes 1. This admission form must be produced by the shareholder/proxy in order to obtain admittance to the Annual General
Meeting.
2. Shareholders or their Proxies are requested to sign the admission form before attending the meeting.
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Contact

Head Office
NCR House
6 Broad Street,
P. O. Box 509,
Lagos.
Website: www.ncr.com
Tel: 01-2793970
Abuja Office
NCR Nigeria Plc,
2nd Floor,
Nicon Insurance Plaza
Central Business District,
Abuja.
Port Harcourt Office
70 Haven Road, GRA Port Harcourt,
Phase 2,
Port Harcourt,
Rivers State.
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